
Page 1 of 2 

 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
B. ROLL CALL
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement)

none 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. November 25, 2024 Study Session Third Ward Housing & Revitalization Plan
2. November 25, 2024 Regular Minutes

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Susan Plassmeyer is nominated for appointment to the Solid Waste & Recycling Task Force by

Councilmember Dennis Fuller.

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. John Solodar was sworn int to the Park Commission on December 4, 2024, in the clerk’s office.

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed)
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room.

The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS

none
K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required)

1. 2025 Legislative Platform
2. Funding Approval Form and Grant Agreement for FEMA's Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) grant.
3. Funding Approval Form and Grant Agreement for FEMA's Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP)

grant.
4. Tree Removal Contract for Pershing and Ferguson Improvement Project
5. Acceptance of ARPA Grant for Lucas Mechanical CPR device
6. Disposal Service Agreement Amendment

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed)
1. City Manager Updates
2. First (1st) Quarter Financial Report - September 30, 2024

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required)
none

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, December 9, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
N. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolutions   (voice vote required)  

none 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 

1. BILL 9563 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY OFFICIALS 
AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER JANUARY 13, 2025, AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7360. 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
 
Posted December 6, 2024. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 1 of 11 

STUDY SESSION 
Third Ward Housing and Revitalization Report 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, November 25, 2024 
5:30 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Study Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, November 25, 2024,
Mayor Terry Crow, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:
Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember John Tieman 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and Ed 
Sharrer of Yard & Company.   

2. CHANGES TO REGULAR AGENDA
None

3. FOR THE 3RD WARD PLAN PRESENTATION
Mr. Rose stated on October 11, 2021, Council approved a Resolution creating the Housing and Third
Ward Revitalization Task Force.  This was to be a citizen-driven initiative with the mission of
developing a strategy for revitalizing the Third Ward.  Deputy City Manager, Brooke Sharp was
assigned as the staff liaison and will proceed with the introductory segment of this presentation.

Ms. Sharp stated this process; which has been very lengthy, commenced in June of 2022. It entailed a 
huge amount of community engagement and the utilization of a consultant; Jordan Coe of Yard & 
Company. Tonight's abridged version of the full plan provided to Council will be made by Mr. Ed 
Sharrer of Yard & Company.   

Ms. Sharp then acknowledged the following Task Force members in attendance to assist 
with questions or provide feedback about the process: 
• Byron Price   Chair 
• Christina Dancy   Vice-Chair 
• Linda Peoples-Jones
• Patricia McQueen

Mr. Sharrer stated this is the most beautiful City Hall he has ever had the privilege of making a 
presentation in and the renovations being made at the City's Library fall under the same category.  So, 
there is a lot to be proud of in U City, and Yard & Company is honored to have been selected to work 
on this plan. 

Purpose of the Plan 
• To develop a housing plan that guides equitable growth in the short and long-term
• To create a revitalization strategy for the Third Ward that ensures outcomes that strengthen the

local economy and prevent economic displacement

E - 1 - 1



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 2 of 11 
 

• To encourage home ownership; strengthen neighborhood bonds, and build a consensus around 
the plan's recommendations 

• To conduct engagement that is thoughtful and meaningful while also building off of past planning 
and engagement efforts 

• To empower stakeholders to carry the plan forward and ensure that community change is 
reflective of who they are 

 
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 
Through the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) which captures a portion of the increased taxes, 
realized from the Market at Olive, $15 million in revitalization funds for the Third Ward will be generated 
over time:  $10 million for Third Ward Residential Neighborhoods and $5 million for the Olive Boulevard 
Commercial Corridor. 
 
The adopted TIF Redevelopment Plan includes three Redevelopment Project Areas (RPAs): 
• Market at Olive (RPA1) 
• Third Ward Residential Neighborhoods (RPA2) 
• Olive Boulevard Commercial Corridor (RPA3) 

 
Project Schedule 
Yard & Company's process is built around three phases; 
EXPLORE - information gathering from the community & analysis;  (July 2023 to January 2024) 
TEST - idea testing and options with the community; (January to April 2024) 
BUILD - develop housing and revitalization plan approved by the community; (May to September 2024)  
 
Project Organization 
All of this work was done in partnership with Brooke Smith, who served as the Project Manager 
overseeing the planning effort, along with the Third Ward Revitalization Task Force made up of 
residents and stakeholders.   Members of Task Force:  Byron Price (Chair), Christina Dancy (Vice 
Chair), Christopher Flood, Ariel Garner, Craig Hughes, Patricia McQueen, Susan Murray, Linda 
Peoples-Jones, and Mayela Zambrano, all of these folks gave up a lot of their time throughout the 
entire process.   
 
The Task Force's major responsibilities are: 

• To provide information/insight 
• To connect the process to the community 
• To inspire, enable, and partner on engagement efforts  
• To review and translate input gathered 

 
Three residents of the Third Ward comprised the Community Ambassadors; Angela Mooney, Charlene 
Temple, and Dr. Mona Rimson-Hope.  They were paid on an hourly basis to assist with community 
engagement and are keenly responsible for the success of the engagement that happened in the Third 
Ward.   
 
Yard & Company is the lead consulting firm, supported by the planning team of Collabo; a 
subcontractor based out of Chicago. Kevin Wright of Yard & Company is the principal in charge of the 
consulting team and is the primary point of contact in charge of coordinating the workflow and 
expectations of the team.  Mr. Sharrer is the Project Manager. 
 
Phase 1 - Exploring Analysis 
The first phase, Explore, involved exploring the Ward, the analysis of data, and engagement with 
residents 

• 256 surveys were submitted that explored what residents liked about the Third Ward; what they 
didn't like, and what was important to them 
 173 digital surveys/83 digital 

E - 1 - 2



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 3 of 11 
 

 92% lived in the Third Ward 
 95% were homeowners 
 5% were renters 
 The top issues they believed needed to be addressed were walkability, safety/security, 

property maintenance, landlords, and retail/shopping 
• Mapping exercise where residents were asked to geographically pinpoint the places they 

frequented, disliked, liked, etc.   
 There were 386 visits to the website and 153 pins mainly along Olive Blvd., which they 

believed had some good businesses, but conditions needed to be improved 
 Opportunities were noted on City-owned and vacant property  
 The Delmar Loop was a common destination outside of the Third Ward 

• Project website with an introduction to the planning process and links to the mapping exercise 
and surveys 

• Weekly schedule of one or two social media posts on all U City social media accounts 
promoting the project website, activities, and Community Ambassadors 

• Stakeholder meetings with private non-profits, City department heads, the City Manager, and 
the Mayor, to find out the inside perspective on funding needs, strengths, and weaknesses 

• Driving and walking tours of the neighborhood to get a feel for neighborhood conditions 
 
Emerging Themes 
This initial analysis led to a set of emerging themes: 

• Sharpen the Focus - identify areas of focus that will create a ripple effect throughout the Ward 
• Connections are Key - connect existing Third Ward assets and focus areas 
• Transform Olive Blvd. - make Olive Blvd, the best version of itself for the benefit of residents 
• Close the Operating Entity Gap - ensure there are people empowered to consistently work on 

behalf of the Third Ward 
• Tailored Owner Tools - build out a comprehensive toolbox of programs and support for Third 

Ward homeowners 
 
Summary of Understanding 
A full document of data analysis summarizing Phase I was made available to the public. 
 
Phase II - Testing Analysis 
The Task Force and planning team developed a strategy for gathering public input on a set of proposed 
concepts and solutions gathered from information in the initial Phase. 
 
Testing Survey  
172 surveys were received; 66 digital and 106 in-person or paper.  
 
Topics included: 

• What types of things would you like to walk to 
• What kind of shops would you like to see 

 Food/beverages 
 Hospitality/Entertainment 
 Neighborhood services 
 Specialty retail 
 Professional offices 
 Business incubator 

• What type of housing do you think makes the most sense for the Third Ward 
 Single-family (restored older homes) 
 Single-family (new starter homes) 
 Multi-family (small scale) 
 Attached brick townhomes 
 Cottage court homes (small, shared green space) 

E - 1 - 3



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 4 of 11 
 

 Live/work units 
 Accessory dwelling units (in-laws suites) 

• What would make walking in the Third Ward more pleasant  
 Landscaping 
 Reduced speed limits 
 Marked trails 
 Raised crosswalks 
 Way-finding signage 
 Wide paths 

• What is your connection to the Third Ward 
• How long have you lived in the Third Ward 

 
Stakeholder Interviews 
The planning team conducted additional stakeholder interviews where there was broad consensus on 
several topics: 

• Housing solutions 
• Focus areas with small-scale retail 
• Calming traffic 
• Overall Third Ward investment 

 
Pop-up Engagements 
The planning team and Ambassadors conducted five engagement pop-ups designed to meet people 
where they are: 

• Aldi's 
• Pete's Market 
• Loop Laundry 
• Mi Ranchito 
• Millar Park 

 
The team visited with over 200 residents who were provided with interactive engagement boards and 
cards directing them to surveys they could fill out later. 
 
Open House 
The team hosted an Open House at the Heman Park Community Center.  Approximately 50 residents 
interacted with staff, listened to project updates and provided input.  Engagement activities included: 

• Housing toolkit budgeting exercise 
• Display boards highlighting the proposed focus areas 
• Nine housing tools were displayed as possible tactics to be implemented in the Third Ward with 

funding provided by the TIF: 
1. Healthy homes program 
2. Home repair grants 
3. Yard and garden contests 
4. Porch lighting program 
5. Path to homeownership tools 
6. HISA grants 
7. Home improvement classes 
8. Weatherization assistance 
9. Tool lending library 

 
Testing - Phase 2 Results 
Feedback from the engagement boards and surveys helped inform the plan recommendations related 
to housing, focus areas, connections, and walkability.   

E - 1 - 4



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 5 of 11 
 

This assisted the planning team with honing in on ideas that would build consensus with one final push 
for engagement to test Rabe Park as a focus area for improvements.  The park is located in the middle 
of the Third Ward in an area where housing values are a little higher, the network of sidewalks is 
robust, and there is good visibility.  
 
Phase 3 - Building Consensus 
The planning team and Ambassadors hosted a Saturday afternoon pop-up event at Rabe Park to 
collect final feedback on the draft plan.   

• Over 150 people attended the lively event with games, music, ice cream, and food   
• A series of engagement boards were displayed at the event that allowed participants to provide 

their feedback 
• The team spray painted the concept of a 400 square-foot cafe in the park, with an ADA-

accessible path leading from the sidewalk into the park, and walks you by the cafe and the new 
playground scheduled to be built next year 

 
Participant's reception to the ideas shared at this event was overwhelmingly positive and informed the 
final plan recommendations. 
 
Common Themes from Residents 

• Make all housing toolkits available to everyone regardless of their income 
• Big trucks are a problem on Sutter 
• Rabe Park improvements should not be too active or too loud 
• Helping pedestrians safely cross Olive is needed 
• Adjacent neighbors expressed concerns about development of the Mt. Olive parcel 
• Allow grants to be used for homeowners experiencing flooding; (infrastructure repairs and free 

sump pumps) 
• Focus on getting back to the basics; 

 Safety/lighting 
 Infrastructure 
 Trees 
 Vacancies 

  
Recommendations - Community-Driven Vision 

1. Develop a Housing Toolkit 
It is recommended that a total allocation of $3,300,000 over the life of the TIF be used to 
support 200 plus loans at a maximum amount of $15,000   
 To be eligible for this funding a homeowner must have lived in their house for at least 5 

years   
 The City could utilize a dollar-for-dollar match for homeowners that make over the AMI, and 

a lower match; i.e., $5,000 could be established for homeowners that are below the AMI   
 The 5-year loan could be forgiven by 1/5 every year they reside in the home 
 Other organizations, non-profits, or governmental agencies may be willing to contribute to 

the match to help administer the program 
 Eligible improvements include; 
 Cleaning, painting, and staining exterior surfaces 
 Repairing or replacing masonry, cornices, entrances, doors, windows, decorative details, 

and awnings 
 Wall, ceiling, roofing, and flooring repairs 
 Plumbing, electrical, and mechanical repairs 
 Air conditioning and heating 
 Flood repair and mitigation, sump pumps 

 

E - 1 - 5



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 6 of 11 
 

• Aging in Place and HISA Grants 
The Veterans Affairs Home Improvements and Structural Alterations (HISA) grant provides 
financial assistance for medically necessary improvements or modifications to disabled 
veterans' homes. 
 A lifetime benefit of $6,800 that does not need to be repaid 
 It is recommended that a total allocation of $1,020,000 over the life of the TIF be used to 

support up to 150 grants at $6,800, regardless of their veteran status 
 The City could also provide connections to local organizations that can perform; 
 Entrances to or exits from the residence 
 Essential lavatory/sanitary facilities 
 Accessibility to kitchen or bathroom sinks or counters 
 Improving entrance paths 
 Improving plumbing or electrical systems 

• Path to Home Ownership Program 
The program should support first-time home buyers to advance equity in the Third Ward. 
 Potential owners could apply for up to $10,000 in assistance which could be used for all or 

part of a down payment, closing costs, appraisal fees, interest buy-down, and property 
inspection 

 It is recommended that this program be offered first to Third Ward residents and then to the 
rest of the City 

• Weatherization Assistance Program 
• Tenant Opportunity to Purchase Ordinance 

This program was piloted in Washington, D.C. where an ordinance was established that 
required landlords within a specific geographic area to notify their tenants and the City when 
they want to sell the property.  Tenants are then given a reasonable amount of time to purchase 
the property at market value. 
 This prevents the rapid displacement of residents 

 
2. Focus Investment for Maximum Impact 
• ETSO:  Etzel, Sutter, and Olive Corridor 

Three primary areas were identified as tremendous opportunities to create a ripple effect; Rabe 
Park, Mt. Olive, and the "ETSO" corridor of Sutter Avenue from Etzel to Olive, which is located 
at the end of the Third Ward. 
 The ETSO corridor; an acronym for Sutter, Etzel, and Olive, was high on the team's list of 

potentials because it seems like a natural for creating a pocket of interests 
 MetroLink 
 St. Vincent Head Trail that takes you to Forest Park, etc. 
 Mt. Gideon Church 
 Well U Cafe 
 Interesting commercial node at Sutter and Olive 
 Near elementary schools 

 
All of these assets coupled with a cluster of vacant residential lots, west of Sutter create an 
exciting opportunity for comprehensive reinvestment in a critical area of the Third Ward that is 
within walking distance of the Delmar Loop. 
 

• Intersection Tactics 
Making tactical improvements to calm traffic and create a safer pedestrian environment would 
benefit all parties.  These improvements can start as lighter, faster, cheaper ideas like painted 
curb extensions, well-defined crosswalk markings, and outdoor seating planters.  Over time the 
City can invest in more permanent solutions. 
 These safety enhancements can also create a visual identity that announces Sutter & Etzel 

as the starting point of U City for pedestrians and cyclists using the St. Vincent Trail or 
MetoLink 

E - 1 - 6



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 7 of 11 
 

 This gateway positions the Well U Cafe as a welcoming stop and sets the stage for future 
economic development in the ETSO district 

 There is a need to make sure that the City's zoning ordinances allow for certain things 
• Rabe Park 

Because of its central location, high visibility, open layout, and low usage, Rabe Park is 
envisioned as an ideal place for small-scale, neighborhood-serving retail, such as an ice-cream 
shop or cafe. 
 The recommendation is to start with a small, unobtrusive off-street parking area that can 

accommodate a food truck on weekends, along with ADA-compliant pathways 
 Another option for parking is to remove a lane of traffic on Midland Blvd., for curbside on-

street parking 
 Add seating and string lights 
 After demand increases, build a small cafe; approximately 400 square feet, and a patio, 

overlooking the playground 
 Program the park with occasional acoustic music, children's story time, bookmobile, or 

small weekend pop-up craft festivals 
 Intersection improvements will help residents get to the park safely 

• Mt. Olive Cemetery 
These 11 acres of wooded land represent the largest potential housing development site in the 
Third Ward.  The location along Canton, a primary east-west corridor in the Third Ward is 
particularly important. 
 It is recommended that the City work collaboratively with the property owners and potential 

developers to maintain a critical threshold of quality and appropriateness while streamlining 
the development approval process 

 Every effort should be made to create a meaningful and contributing neighborhood on this 
site 

 It should feature a range of building and accommodation types, provide opportunities for a 
mix of incomes, and contain at a minimum, the basic elements of traditional neighborhood 
and community living 

 
3. Connect the Focus Areas 

The existing parks, mature street trees, and calm streets of the Third Ward create opportunities 
for enhanced connectivity and walkability with relatively small investments. 
 The walking route would strategically meet Olive Blvd. at points envisioned for advanced 

pedestrian crossings to link residents with Heman Park, Brittany Woods Elementary 
School, and Ackert Walkway leading to the Delmar Loop, as well as goods and services on 
the south side of Olive 

 The goal should be to create clearly defined, attractive walking routes that every 5-10 
minutes connect to another Third Ward asset 
 

4. Enhance Olive 
Throughout the planning process, residents and stakeholders alike described Olive Blvd. as a 
physical and emotional divider between the Third Ward and the rest of the City. Ultimately, the 
City should; in partnership with MoDOT, embark on a full Corridor Plan for Olive with robust 
community engagement.  Greening and beautifying Olive, creating economic opportunities, and 
increasing pedestrian safety while crossing Olive should be paramount considerations. 

• Recommended Enhanced Olive Crossings 
 Invest a portion of TIF funds to enhance pedestrian crossings at these strategic locations;  
 82nd Boulevard 
 Partridge Avenue 
 Ferguson Avenue 
 Sutter Avenue/66th Avenue 

 

E - 1 - 7



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 8 of 11 
 

Implementation 
Of the $10 million in TIF funds that will be generated over time, about $7.6 million are unrestricted 
funds, the remaining funds are restricted for parks and stormwater. 
 
The planning team made the following recommendations that have been vetted by the Task Force: 

• Housing Tool Matrix - Housing Programs 
 Approximately 75% of unrestricted funds should be used on housing programs for 

residents; (four programs) 
 In year one, approximately $1.2 million of the restricted funds should be used for housing 

programs.  As the increments are generated, 90% of these funds should be used on 
housing programs 

 Begin accepting/advertising for housing programs 
 Housing programs should continue throughout the lifespan of the TIF 

 
Currently, the City does not have anyone to administer these programs.  So, the team saw this as a 
real opportunity to hire someone as part of the administration that would administer these programs; 
engage with the community to let them know about these programs and be a resource for the two 
members of Council in the Third Ward.  It is recommended that dollars go into creating this position. 
 

• Housing Tool Matrix - Incentive Redevelopment 
 Zoning code update to allow for expanding housing types in specific areas 
 Incentivize redevelopment by fast-tracking housing permits and/or reducing fees for new 

housing 
 Enact a local Tenant Opportunity to Purchase Act Ordinance 
 Develop criteria for emergency property acquisition and paths/partners for redeveloping 

properties 
 Establish an emergency fund for acquiring problem properties 
 Develop a pattern book of preapproved plans for residential construction within specific 

focus areas 
• Focus Area Matrix - Mt. Olive 

 Hyper-local engagement of neighbors 
 Create a development scorecard 

• Focus Area Matrix - Rabe Park 
These proposed improvements total roughly 1 million dollars. 
 Issue bond for capital improvements against restricted RPA2 funds 
 Install new playground equipment 
 Install ADA-accessible pathways and other improvements 
 Create Friends of Rabe Park Group 
 Create regular park programming once a week; food truck etc. 
 Engage residents for feedback after the first season of programming 
 Construct a cafe building 
 Engage residents on the next park investments to fund from restricted RPA2 funds 

 
If this works out well, there will be funds available to do something similar for another park in the Third 
Ward or go in a completely different direction. 
 

• Focus Area Matrix - ETSO Etzel & Sutter 
 Enforce limits on heavy truck traffic on Sutter 
 Accelerate construction of St. Vincent Greenway connection to Sutter 
 Paint curb extensions and crosswalks/install bollards at NW and SW corners 
 Plant trees to replace the missing canopy over Etzel and Sutter 

• Focus Area Matrix - ETSO Sutter & Olive 
 Tap into the current zoning code process to allow for First 16 Feet improvements 
 Create Exterior and Public Space Matching Funds from RPA3 TIF funds 

E - 1 - 8



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 9 of 11 
 

 
Connections:  Enhance Olive Boulevard 
Part of the TIF structure permits incentives for commercial property; investing 1% of those funds over 
time into a matching grant fund for commercial properties at Sutter and Olive would make sense.  The 
team has left almost 75% of the dollars alone but does think that as Olive Boulevard goes, so goes the 
Third Ward.  Therefore, the crossings at Olive would be worth the investment.   
 
Mr. Sharrer stated that the planning team has proposed a 3-year, 36-month implementation schedule 
that covers various areas of the plan. 
 
Mayor Crow stated this is quite an impressive piece of work, so he would like to thank Mr. Sharrer for 
his presentation and the Task Force for the hours, days, and weeks they have dedicated to this project 
and the community. 
 
Councilmember Clay stated he would echo the Mayor's accolades because this Task Force has been 
in operation for years, so all of their efforts are genuinely appreciated.   He also recognized some of the 
very innovative community engagement techniques that were utilized.  And in talking with residents, 
they too were impressed by the level of outreach; which is something they have not seen happen city-
wide, much less in the Third Ward. 
 
Councilmember Clay then posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q.  This is a strategy that does not get to a level of granularity for how to implement these 
programs or what they would look like.  So, what do you see the next steps being comprised of? 
A.  The next step will be to include this plan on Council's January agenda for consideration.  If 
approved, staff will start integrating some of these strategies into the 2026 Annual Operating Budget; 
with perhaps, the most important item being to hire an administrator who can help with the execution of 
these strategies. 
Q.  When would you look at hiring someone? 
A.  That will depend on how quickly the Council wants to move forward.  If the plan is accepted in 
January, staff could carve out this position in this Fiscal Year's budgeting process which is scheduled to 
start in January.  
 
Councilmember Hales stated it is not often that the Council receives a 70-page Study Session packet 
filled with such great information.  Moreover, he was intrigued by the Rabe Park proposal because it is 
a neighborhood park rather than a destination park.  The City has so many neighborhood parks that he 
thought the concept of making this a destination by adding parking was interesting.  He stated that he 
would like to see food trucks and events at some of these parks to give people a reason to visit and 
build community. 
 
Councilmember Hales then posed the following questions to Mr. Sharrer: 
Q.  Since the City is already in Fiscal Year 25, is your implementation schedule referring to 
calendar quarters vs. fiscal budget quarters?  
A.  This is something they tend to leave undefined.  But, if at all possible, the team was looking at the 
first quarter of the calendar year.  However, if you don't start until the second quarter then everything 
can simply slide over to the next column.   
 
Q.  There was a section on Olive that talked about meeting with folks from MoDOT.  It would be 
great if the City could lean on the State and work with them as much as possible moving 
forward because everything you've talked about is dead-on in terms of accessibility; it really is 
kind of a dividing line.  So, he would be interested to know if MoDOT has been a part of any of 
their conversations? 

E - 1 - 9



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 10 of 11 
 

A.  One of MoDOT's representatives gave up his evenings to attend several of their community 
engagement events.  And in some of his conversations with MoDOT, they appear to have gotten a bit 
of the bug for improving pedestrian safety.  So yes, they are ready to partner with the City on some of 
these ideas and have even offered to do some temporary test scenarios on Olive.   
 The key is that Olive does not have to be one continuous section from the far east, all the 
way to the far west, and I-70.  It can have different personalities that respond to the adjacent land uses.  
For example; near the Market at Olive, it needs to be exactly what it is.  But as it starts to reach Heman 
Park it can be more accommodating to cyclists and pedestrians because it is closer to neighborhood-
level amenities.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated MoDOT will be making improvements to Olive in 2026.  Therefore, 
it will be important to find out when that is going to happen so the City can perhaps, work with them to 
implement some of the crossings that have been recommended.   
 Councilmember Smotherson stated he wanted to thank the planning team and Task Force 
for identifying what has been missing at Rabe Park all these years; parking for residents.  This is 
something that the City should address sooner rather than later because there should be parking on the 
right side of Midland which is marked one lane from Delmar all the way down Heman Park.   
 He stated while he appreciates many aspects of this plan, he's worried that at the end of 
these 25 years all that is going to be accomplished as it relates to housing, is giving money away for 
repairs without solving any of the real problems.  The Third Ward has 300 vacant houses and lots that 
are impacting their neighborhoods by bringing property values down, but nowhere in this Housing 
Toolkit is that being addressed.  What is the goal we're trying to accomplish, and how can you measure 
success without utilizing these specific metrics?  Councilmember Smotherson stated that in his opinion, 
the housing portion of this plan needs more work.   
 
Mr. Sharrer stated what the planning team gleaned early on was that residents did not seem to have 
much of an appetite for utilizing these funds to invest in acquiring land for development.    
 What they were hoping would be measurable was the implementation of an anti-
displacement tool where success would be noted by the ability to see stable neighborhoods 10 or 15 
years from now because people were allowed to age in place.  On the other hand, if you see rapid 
turnovers and 30% of the residents are completely different at the expense of those who made the 
sacrifice by trying to stay here, you wouldn't consider that to be measurable; unless the population 
increased because there was more housing stock.  He stated they were seeding the idea that putting 
new housing on a block where other properties are not in good condition is kind of like the chicken and 
the egg conjecture.  Do you create a robust development environment by having vacant lots next to 
quality housing, or do you bring in new housing first with the hope of developing quality housing?  Mr. 
Sharrer stated what they have found is that new housing puts a bulls-eye on houses that are not in 
good shape, and that can lead to displacement.  
  He stated there is a lot of coffee that can be consumed while discussing this topic, and he 
does not think either direction would be wrong.  It really comes down to a matter of priority.  So, 
Councilmember Smotherson's perspective is well-taken and if the City wants them to go back to the 
drawing board to make some adjustments, they would be happy to do so.    
 
Mayor Crow stated the concept of development nodes has been around before any conversations ever 
took place about the Market at Olive, so he is intrigued by the fact that this seems to be a solid way to 
begin this discussion on housing.  And the strategy of putting money into a variety of homes is an 
interesting concept because how can you continue to secure additional financing for people wanting to 
relocate when they're being denied based on these lower-valued properties in the Third Ward; 
especially around the areas of Midland and Canton?  He stated at some point, he would like to know 
what if any outreach has been made to the Urban League, and whether there might be any duplication 
of efforts.   
 Mayor Crow stated obviously, the Ambassadors did an incredible job of getting the message 
out about this plan.   

E - 1 - 10



 

November 25, 2024 - Study Session Minutes         Page 11 of 11 
 

So, what he's been thinking about is whether the City will need a full-time person to be 
responsible for doing everything or if they could utilize the Ambassadors in the beginning and see what 
happens next.  Of course, when it comes to hiring and execution, someone who was a good 
Ambassador may not be a good manager.   
 
Councilmember Clay stated he shares Councilmember Smotherson's desire to put metrics around 
some of the housing initiatives.  The one they started with was looking at home values on a percentage 
basis; which is what he understood this project was meant to address.  Home values in the Third Ward 
fell more sharply than in the other Wards whenever there was a downturn, and rose slower when things 
improved, so there was an effort to equalize that.  Another area is the potential to leverage additional 
funds.  Councilmember Clay stated he is aware that there has been some interest from a local St. Louis 
non-profit to support the Third Ward by investing dollars in a variety of ways.  So, as Council moves 
through this process and gets more support at the administrative level, he thinks they will be able to 
really dig into the metrics. 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT   
Mayor Crow thanked everyone for doing an incredible job and adjourned the Study Session at  
6:28 p.m. 

 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 1 - 11





 November 25, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                         Page 1 of 5 

 

AGENDA 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, November 25,
2024, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember John Tieman 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 

` Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan Jr., and 
Director of Parks & Recreation, Darin Girdler. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Hearing no requests to amend, Councilmember Hales moved to approve the Agenda as
presented, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.

D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement)
1. Commission on Arts and Letters Returning Artist:  Christopher J. Thomas

Mayor Crow acknowledged the Arts and Letters' Proclamation, which will be signed and
provided to the Commission.

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. November 12, 2024, Study Session Recreation & Organizational Structure was moved by

Councilmember McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller, and the motion
carried unanimously, with the exception of Councilmember Hales.

2. November 12, 2024, Regular Minutes was moved by Councilmember McMahon, it was
seconded by Councilmember Tieman, and the motion carried unanimously.

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. John Solodar is nominated for appointment to the Park Commission as a fill-in by

Councilmember Stacy Clay, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion
carried unanimously.

2. Alice Boon is nominated for appointment to the Solid Waste & Recycling Rate Study Task
Force by Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales,
and the motion carried unanimously.

3. Roger McFarland and Kathryn Freese are nominated for reappointment to the Urban
Forestry Commission by Councilmember Dennis Fuller, it was seconded by Councilmember
Hales, and the motion carried unanimously.

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, November 25, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 2 - 1



 

 November 25, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                         Page 2 of 5 
 

 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Ken Schechtman was sworn into the Green Practices Commission at the Community 
Center on November 14, 2024. 
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent 
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  
Such comments will be provided to the City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official 
record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note 
whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not provided, the comment 
will not be recorded in the official record. 
 

Mayor Crow acknowledged that there were no written or verbal comments. 
 

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
None 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. REZ 24-03 an application by Dierbergs University City, LLC for a Zoning Map Amendment to 

rezone 6.10 acres of land known as Adjusted Lot 1, Market at Olive, Plat 7, from Industrial 
Commercial District (IC) to Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C). 
 

Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:38 p.m.  After acknowledging that there were no 
comments, the hearing was closed at 6:39 pm. 
 

K. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 
1. 100-foot ladder Truck Purchase (Fire Dept.) 
2. OMCI Stormwater Reimbursement Program Agreement 

 
Councilmember Hales moved to approve Items 1 and 2 of the Consent Agenda, it was seconded 
by Councilmember Tieman. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked where the fire truck was going to be housed?  Mr. Rose stated 
his understanding is that it will be housed at the Fire Station off of Westgate and Vernon. 
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Hale's motion carried unanimously. 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – (Voice vote on each item as needed) 
1. City Manager Updates 

Fall Leave Collection 
Significant progress has been made in the City's fall leave collection efforts, and he would 
ask Mr. Girdler to give Council an update on the status. 
 

Mr. Girdler stated while technically they are in a break between the two seasons for leave 
collection, their contractor is still collecting some of the bigger piles around the City.  So, in an 
attempt to resolve any confusion about when leaves would be picked up, this afternoon the 
Communication's Manager sent out information notifying residents that even though collections 
were completed in the east portion of the City on Friday, they will start back up again in the central 
portion on December 2nd, move to the west, and then go back to the east.  Street sweeping of the 
entire City will commence after the leaf collection process has been completed. 

E - 2 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

 November 25, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                         Page 3 of 5 
 

 
Mr. Rose stated some questions were raised about the issuance of citations for residents who 
placed their leaves at the curb before their collection date.  Staff has been made aware of this 
confusion, so up until this point, Chief Hampton and his officers have been very lenient about the 
issuance of any citations and will continue to do so.     

 
Councilmember Smotherson asked if there was an ordinance stating when leaves should be placed 
at the curb and that there would be a penalty for non-compliance?  Mr. Rose stated residents will 
be notified when the collection period has ended, and that from that point on, they will be cited for 
leaves left at the curb.  
 
Mr. Girdler stated that paper leaf collection bags without stickers will still be collected until January 
1, 2025.   
 
Councilmember Fuller stated some individuals in his neighborhood are putting yard waste out with 
their leaves.  So perhaps, some information could be sent out to residents explaining exactly what 
should be set out for collection. 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rdreadings) 
1. BILL 9559 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE MUNICIPAL 

CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, BY AMENDING SAID MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE 
CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY KNOWN AS ADJUSTED LOT 1 OF MARKET AT 
OLIVE PLAT 7, FROM INDUSTRIAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (“IC”) TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (“PD-C”).  Bill Number 9559 was read for 
the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Hales moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes: Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Fuller, 
Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Tieman, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None 
 

2. BILL 9560 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
ADJUSTED LOT 1 OF THE MARKET AT OLIVE DEVELOPMENT PLAT 7.  Bill Number 
9560 was read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller. 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes: Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, 
Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Tieman, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None 
 

3. BILL 9561 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PARCEL DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE OLIVE BOULEVARD COMMERCIAL 
CORRIDOR AND RESIDENTIAL CONSERVATION REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND 
THE MARKETS AT OLIVE COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7226.  Bill Number 9561 was read for the second and 
third time. 

 
Councilmember Tieman moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 

Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes: Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, 
Councilmember Tieman, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None 

E - 2 - 3



 

 November 25, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                         Page 4 of 5 
 

 
4. BILL 9562 - AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 

MISSOURI, TO ISSUE ITS TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (Dierbergs 
University City, LLC Project), SERIES 2024, IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $32,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY THE 
COSTS OF ACQUIRING AND CONSTRUCTING AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT IN THE CITY, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 
CERTAIN AGREEMENTS AND TAKE CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7227.  
Bill Number 9562 was read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Clay. 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes: Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Tieman, Councilmember McMahon, 
Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None 
 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
  Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 

1. Resolution 24-14 – Preliminary Plan Approval – Adoption of a Resolution to approve 
the Preliminary Development Plan for Market at Olive 

 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales, and 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Crow stated it's nice to know that the City is getting close to completing all of the legislation 
related to the Market at Olive. 
 

  Bills - (No vote required on introduction and 1st reading) 
  None 
 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1.  Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

Councilmember Hales stated he would like to take this opportunity to recognize and thank 
members of the Plan Commission who he has had the privilege of being the Council liaison 
for since 2020.  The Chair, Ms. Holly will be cycling off the Commission in December, and 
it's great to know that they will be in good hands as they continue their extraordinary work. 
 
Mayor Crow stated he could not agree more, as this Commission has worked tirelessly and 
done a wonderful job undertaking the Visioning Plan, The Comprehensive Plan, and are 
now reviewing the City's Zoning Code. 
 

3.  Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed)   

Citizen's Comments 
Connie McNut, 7382 Pershing, U City, Missouri 
Ms. McNut stated she was here tonight to raise awareness of the problems she's experienced 
with getting help dealing with slum landlords.  Previously, she had a very negative experience 
when she attempted to report the problems she was having to the City's Building Department, 
which led to her being asked to vacate the premises.  And today, she finds herself in the same 
situation with a slum landlord who refuses to address problems associated with heating, cooling, 
the roof, water damage, mold, and roaches.   

E - 2 - 4



 

 November 25, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                         Page 5 of 5 
 

 
She stated her landlord is an attorney who has managed to elude the City's maintenance 
requirements and may be committing insurance fraud.  Because instead of fixing any of these 
problems he told her that she could move out and proposed a 33% increase in her rent, all while 
purchasing a new Hummer and BMW.  Yet, the roof has been damaged since June, a portion of 
her ceiling caved in on Election Day, the apartment is infested with rodents, and she has no 
heat.    
 Ms. McNut stated she does her part and believes that the City should be required to make 
sure landlords do the same.  Tenants should not have to face eviction for reporting the health 
and safety issues they are being forced to live with.  So, she hopes that Council would consider 
taking some type of legislative action to protect tenants who report these issues and give them 
60 to 90 days to find a nice place to live.   
 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
None 
 

Councilmember Hales moved to adjourn the Regular Session, it was seconded by Councilmember 
Tieman, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT  
Mayor Crow wished everyone a nice holiday and adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 2 - 5





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20241209-01

The City of University City's 2025 Legislative Platform

City Manager Gregory Rose All
Consent yes

City Manager recommends approval of the 2025 Legislative Platform.

This agenda item asks the Mayor and Council to consider the City of University City 2025 
Legislative Platform. The document is intended to provide staff and our governmental affairs 
consultant with guidance during the 2025 Federal and State legislative sessions.  Guidance 
is provided in the areas that include revenues, governance, infrastructure, social services, 
crime prevention, and environment.

City of University City 2025 Legislative Platform

Economic Development 
Public Safety 
Infrastructure 
Prudent Fiscal Managment 

City Manager, Gegory Rose December 9, 2024

K - 1 - 1



City of University City 2025 Legislative Platform 
 
 This 2025 Legislative Platform reflects Council’s legislative positions and priorities on current 
or anticipated legislative action at both state and federal levels.  Guided by this legislative 
platform, staff will take action to influence legislative efforts based on the best interests of the 
community and the City of University City.  Staff will update Council throughout the legislative 
session while seeking specific feedback on issues of major importance to the City. 

 
2025 State Legislative Platform 

 
I.  REVENUE AND FINANCE 

 
A. The City will oppose legislation that results in the reduction of revenues collected by 

the City and support legislation that enhances revenue collections. 
 

B. Oppose legislation that reduces shared revenues, State Gas Tax, licensing or franchise 
fees, or any other source of current revenue for the City. 

 
C. The City will protect its ability to collect and use property, and sales taxes in order to 

properly manage the operations of the City and to manage growth. 
 

II. GOVERNANCE 
 

A. The City will oppose legislation that reduces the City’s local authority and support 
legislation that strengthens or increases local control. 

• Oppose legislation that creates unfunded mandates and burdensome 
regulations. 

• Oppose legislation that imposes personal liability on Council members for 
actions taken as part of their official duty; and oppose legislation that 
increases City liability or requires the City to take on additional indemnity. 

• Oppose legislation that consolidates governments, and/or services without a 
vote of those residents impacted or a vote that is diluted.   

 
III. QUALITY SERVICES 

 
A. The City will support legislation that enhances or incentivizes economic development 

within the City and oppose legislation that weakens economic development tools. 
• Support legislation that provides alternative financing tools in order to bring 

economic investments to the City. 

K - 1 - 2



• Support legislation that leverages tax laws in order to bring economic
investments to the City.

B. The City will support legislation that enhances public safety and protection from
criminal activity and oppose any legislation that needlessly reduces public safety or
compromises the City’s ability to provide public safety and to protect property
utilizing its own local authority.

C. The City will support efforts to increase the ability to provide additional quality
parks, recreation and library services and oppose efforts to limit the ability to fund
community services.

• Support legislation that allows additional options to participate in cost sharing
and to finance municipal recreational infrastructure.

• Support all aspects of Community Development Block Grants (CDBG).

D. The City will support legislation that advances responsive and high quality health and
human service practices and delivery to people living in and around University City,
and oppose legislation that negatively impacts these services.

• Support legislation that brings additional services and cost-effective resources
to our senior, veteran, and the disabled population.

• Support legislation that increases health care access to the City’s residents.

IV. INFRASTRUCTURE

A. The City will support legislation that advances the planning, design,
maintenance, and completion of transportation infrastructure and oppose
legislation that will hinder completion of transportation infrastructure.

• Support legislation that creates additional funding options or revenue sources
for transportation infrastructure including private-public partnerships and new
revenue streams.

• Support legislation that expands the revenue streams for sewer lateral
replacements.

B. The City will support legislation that enhances the City’s ability to provide or
oversee safe and affordable utility services while protecting the health, safety, and
public welfare of the people within the City, and oppose any legislation that

K - 1 - 3



needlessly reduces the safety and affordability of utilities or compromises the 
City’s oversight authority. 

V. 2025 FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM

A. The City will seek federal funding for transportation infrastructure, storm water
management projects, hazardous mitigation, and housing.

B. The City will advocate for continued federal support of the transportation
infrastructure and housing grant programs.

C. The City will advocate with the Federal Environmental Protection Agency on
issues negatively impacting the environment.

D. The City will advocate for Federal funding of COPS, and SAFER Grants.

E. Advocate for programming that promotes inclusion, and equity in the workplace,
and business development.

F. Advocate for programs that promote supplemental nutritional assistance

VI. STAFF REQUSTED LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITY

Activity Requesting Department 
Support legislation that improves health, wellness, 
literacy and information access. City Manager’s Office 

Support legislation that enhances the efficiency and 
effectiveness of law enforcement, while protecting 
taxpayers and maintaining local authority. 

• Prioritize resources to combat Violent Crime
• Federal Sentencing Reform and Reducing

Unnecessary Incarceration
• Support consistent and enhanced funding for

mental health services.

Police 
Courts 

Advocate for increased investment in sustainable and 
renewable energy. City Manager’s Office 

Support legislation that promotes workforce housing and 
provides additional resources for homeowner housing 
improvement programs and a path to homeownership.    

         City Manager’s Office 

K - 1 - 4



Support Legislation that removes barriers and increases 
funding for fire departments to provide community care 
services             Fire 

K - 1 - 5





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20241209-02

Funding Approval Form and Grant Agreement for FEMA’s Flood Mitigation Assistance 
(FMA) grant.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development / Wards 2 and 3

Consent Agenda yes

City Manager recommends approval.

None - the $3,224,190 grant amount is 100% federally funded. 

This is the Funding Approval Form and Grant Agreement for the FEMA Flood Mitigation Assistance 
(FMA) grant. This grant is 100% federally-funded. The focus of the grant includes the three 
eastern-most buildings of the Hafner Court Apartments, as shown on the Map of Addresses.

Attached are the U-City FMA Award Packet, a Map of Addresses (this also includes the Wilson 
Avenue properties subject to the HMGP Grant) and Resolution Number 2023-01, passed on 
January 9, 2023, giving the City Council’s approval to participate in the FMA Grant.

Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregory Rose December 9, 2024

K - 2 - 1



K - 2 - 2



Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
Flood Mitigation Grant Program (FMA) 
Funding Approval Form 
EMK-2022-FM-001-0001 
 
 
Name and Address of Recipient: 
 
Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
P.O. Box 116 
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102 

 
Name and Address of Subrecipient: 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
UEI: Q4NLF9FNJZW7 

 
Disaster Number: 
Award: FMA-07-MO-2022 
Subaward: (Project ID) EMK-2022-FM-001-0001 
Agreement: EMK-2022-FM-001 
 

 
 ALN: 
 
97.029 

 
Grant Award Date: 
 
November 25, 2024 

 
Anticipated Project Completion Date: 
 
November 25, 2026 

 
Non-Federal Match Source (0% Cost Share):  The City of University City will provide the 0% local 
match. 
 
 
Project Description: 
The acquisition and demolition of the residential structures located at 8056 Hafner Rd, 8011 Hafner Rd. and 
1215 Westover Ct., University City, MO. 
 
 
 

Budget 
 
Description: 

 
Federal 
Award 

 
Non-Federal 

Share 

 
Total  

Project Cost 
 
Project Funds: 

 
$3,224,190.00 

 
$0.00 

 
$3,224,190.00 

 
Total Funds Awarded: 

 
$3,224,190.00 

 
$0.00 

 
$3,224,190.00 

 
Signature of Authorized Representatives: 

 
 

   
Mr. Gregory Rose      Date 
City Manager      
City of University City      
 
 
 
   
Ronald C. Broxton, Recovery Division Manager  Date  
Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
 
 

 

K - 2 - 3



1 

 

Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
Flood Mitigation Assistance Grant Program 
Grant Agreement 
FMA-07-MO-2022, Project # EMK-2022-FM-001-0001 
 
This grant agreement is made by and between the Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
(SEMA), herein called the State and the City of University City, herein called the Sub-recipient.  
 
In reliance upon and in consideration of the mutual representations and obligations hereunder, the State and 
the Sub-recipient agree as follows: 
 
1. The Sub-recipient agrees to accept responsibility for adherence to this Agreement. 
 
2. The Sub-recipient agrees that any and all such amount of local funds or in-kind services or materials 

shall be equal to or greater than 0% of the total project costs. For severe repetitive loss no match 
required and 10% match for repetitive loss. 
(A) The following documentation is required for matching cash contributions: 

-Record of source of donor, dates, rates, amounts, deposit slips 
(B) The following documentation is required for matching noncash contributions: 

-Record of donor, dates, rates, and amount. 
 
3. The Sub-recipient agrees that any proposed activity budget variances (from the Funding Approval 

form) in excess of the amount of this Agreement shall be approved by the State in writing prior to an 
obligation of funds for such activity; however, any variance shall be approved by the Sub-recipient’s 
governing body in advance of an obligation of such activity.   

 
4. The Sub-recipient agrees to complete the project in its entirety as indicated in the Funding Approval 

form unless amended in writing by agreement of all parties. 
 

5. The (applicant) sub-recipient shall not contract with any entity identified on the General Services 
Administration System for Award Management (SAM) https://www.sam.gov/SAM  Excluded 
Parties List (Debarred List).  

 
6. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals: Sub-recipient must follow 2 CFR Part 200.320 (f) 

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals is 
procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only one source and may be used only when 
one or more of the following circumstances apply: (1) The item is available only from a single 
source; (2) The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting 
from competitive solicitation;(3) The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly 
authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the non-Federal entity; 
or (4) After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate. 
 

7. The Sub-recipient agrees to implement the project in accordance with the milestones identified in the 
application work schedule.  Should the Sub-recipient determine that any milestone will not be met; 
the Sub-recipient will contact the State to request approval to revise the work schedule accordingly. 
 

8. The Sub-recipient agrees that any federal funds remaining from the allocation indicated in the 
Funding Approval form after the project has been completed shall be returned to the State if they 
have been drawn to the Sub-recipient’s local depository, or canceled if such funds have not been 
drawn. 
 

9. The Sub-recipient agrees that the State and FEMA officials shall have full access to any documents 

K - 2 - 4

https://www.sam.gov/SAM


2 

 

or materials relating to this Agreement at any reasonable time.  
 

10. The Sub-recipient agrees to comply with 2 CFR Part 200.  This guidance supersedes and 
consolidates the requirements from OMB Circulars A-21, A-87, A-110, A-122, A-89, A-102, A-133, 
and A-50.  This applies to all awards issued after December 26, 2014.   

 
11. The Sub-recipient agrees to provide the State Monthly Progress Reports by the 10th of each month. 
 
12. The Sub-recipient agrees to comply with any and all guidance provided by the State in regard to this 

grant to include the Local Officials Guide to Managing a Voluntary Buyout guidebook along with all 
requirements as outlined in 44 Code of Federal Regulations Part 80: Property Acquisition and 
Relocation for Open Space. 

 
13. The Sub-recipient agrees that all funds received under this Agreement shall be held and used by the 

Sub-recipient for the purpose of accomplishing the project only and none of the funds so held or 
received shall be diverted to any other use or purpose. 

 
14. The Sub-recipient agrees that any material prepared by the Sub-recipient or persons or firms 

employed or contracted by the Sub-recipient shall not be subject to copyright, and the State shall 
have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, or otherwise use, in whole or in part, any 
reports, data or other material prepared under this agreement. 

 
15.   The Sub-recipient agrees that any approval of contracts, sub-contracts, material or service orders, or 

any other obligation by the Sub-recipient or its agents shall not be deemed an obligation by the State, 
and the State shall not be responsible for fulfillment of the Sub-recipient’s obligations. 

 
16.       Advance Payment Request Requirements: 

 
Advance Payment: For the purposes of this Grant Agreement, advance payment is defined 
as funds given to a sub-recipient in advance of the sub-recipient incurring the debt. For 
example, if a sub-recipient requests advance payment prior to paying the vendors bill, 
receiving the funds would be considered an advance payment. Reimbursement cannot be 
made until the activity has been performed, i.e. equipment or services has been delivered 
and invoiced. For example, when purchasing goods and services or an equipment item, 
reimbursement cannot be made until the item has been received and the vendor has billed 
for the item. 

  
Consequently, the sub-recipient does not have to pay the vendor before submitting the 
reimbursement request.  The sub-recipient must have incurred the debt prior to submitting the 
reimbursement request. 

 
Reimbursement prior to paying a vendor, the following conditions must be taken into 
consideration: 
 
(a) There will be a minimum dollar amount established for sub-recipients requesting a 

reimbursement with an advance payment; the dollar amount will be determined on a 
case-by-case basis. 

(b) When requesting a reimbursement with an advance payment, sub-
recipients are required to submit proof of payment (i.e. copy of check or 
credit card statement) to SEMA within 30 days. 

 
17. In the event that the State or an audit has determined that the Sub-recipient has failed to comply with 

this Agreement, the Sub-recipient shall perform remedial actions to correct the deficiency, as 
determined by the State, which may include: 

K - 2 - 5



3 

 

 
a) Repayment or reimbursement of federal and state funds spent inappropriately to the State; 
b) The return of federal and state funds deposited at the Sub-recipient’s local financial 

institution to the State; 
c) The return of any equipment, materials or supplies purchased, leased, lease purchased 

using federal, or state funds to the State or supplier; 
d) Other actions as the State deems appropriate. 

 
18. The State may terminate this agreement in whole or in part, at any time before the date of 

completion, whenever it is determined by the State that the Sub-recipient has failed to comply with 
the conditions of this Agreement.  The State shall notify the Sub-recipient in writing of the 
determination and the reasons for the termination, together with the effective date.  The Sub-recipient 
shall not incur new obligations for the terminated portion after the effective date of the revocation of 
the Agreement, and it shall be the Sub-recipient’s duty to cancel all outstanding obligations that are 
legally possible. 

 
19. The State and Sub-recipient each binds himself to his successors, executors, administrators, 

assigns and legal representatives or such other party, in respect to all covenants, agreements, 
and obligations of this agreement. 

 
20. The State, may at any time, in its sole discretion, give any consent, deferment, subordination, 

release, satisfaction, or termination of any or all of the Sub-recipient’s obligations under this 
Agreement, with or without valuable consideration, upon such terms and conditions as the State 
may determine to be (a) advisable to further the purpose of the project or to protect the State’s 
financial interest therein, and (b) consistent with both the statutory purposes of the grant and the 
limitations of the statutory authority under which it was made. 

 
21. The Sub-recipient agrees to complete such action as is required to become fully informed of all State 

and National laws and county and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting 
those engaged or employed in the work, or the materials used in the work, or in any way affecting the 
conduct of the work and the Sub-recipient shall at all times observe and comply with, all such 
applicable existing and future laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees and the Sub-
recipient further agrees to protect, indemnify and hold harmless, with respect to any damages arising 
from any completed work or tort done in performing any of the work embraced by this Agreement, 
SEMA, the State of Missouri and the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the officers and 
agents of those entities, from any claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of any law, 
ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether by the Sub-recipient or the Sub-recipient’s employees 

 
22. The Sub-recipient agrees that the remediation of any hazardous materials (except asbestos in 

acquisition/demolition projects) discovered during the completion of this project is the sole 
responsibility of the Sub-recipient.  The Sub-recipient must follow all Federal and State 
regulations. SEMA and FEMA will not contribute any funds or resources to the required 
remediation. 

 
23. The Sub-recipient agrees that it understands and accepts the responsibility under the Revised 

Statutes of Missouri (RSMo) Sections 285.525 through 285.550 (Illegal Immigrants) to ensure that 
“no business entity or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien to perform work within the state of Missouri.”  The Sub-recipient further certifies 
that any contract awarded by the Sub-recipient will require the contracted business entity to comply 
with the references mentioned above. The Sub-recipient understands that failure to comply with this 
requirement will subject the Sub-recipient to the penalties described in the references mentioned 
above. 

 
24.  The Sub-recipient agrees to make every effort to quantify and report losses avoided and success 

K - 2 - 6



4 

 

stories to the State, for the recognized life of the project, after an event occurs that realizes the 
benefit or objective of the project. 

 
25. “Buy America” Build America Act: 
   
 The Build America, Buy America Act (BABAA) requires all federal agencies, including FEMA, to 

ensure by May 14, 2022, that no federal financial assistance for “infrastructure” projects is 
provided “unless all of the iron, steel, manufactured products, and construction materials used in 
the project are produced in the United States.” 

 
Required Use of American Iron, Steel, Manufactured Products, and Construction Materials 
Recipients must comply with the “Build America, Buy America” provisions of the Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act and E.O. 14005. Recipients of an award of Federal financial assistance 
from a program for infrastructure are hereby notified that none of the funds provided under this 
award may be used for a project for infrastructure unless:  

 
(1) All iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States--this means all 

manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of 
coatings, occurred in the United States; 

  
(2) All manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United States—this 

means the manufactured product was manufactured in the United States; and the cost of 
the components of the manufactured product that are mined, produced, or manufactured 
in the United States is greater than 55 percent of the total cost of all components of the 
manufactured product, unless another standard for determining the minimum amount of 
domestic content of the manufactured product has been established under applicable law 
or regulation; and  

 
(3) All construction materials are manufactured in the United States—this means that all 

manufacturing processes for the construction material occurred in the United States.  
 The Buy America preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are 

consumed in, incorporated into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it does not 
apply to tools, equipment, and supplies, such as temporary scaffolding, brought to the 
construction site and removed at or before the completion of the infrastructure project. 
Nor does a Buy America preference apply to equipment and furnishings, such as 
movable chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment that are used at or within the 
finished infrastructure project, but are not an integral part of the structure or permanently 
affixed to the infrastructure project. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

K - 2 - 7

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/3684/text


5 

 

Signatory Approval of the  
Flood Mitigation Assistance Program  

Flood Buyout Grant Agreement 
 

The parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year indicated in the Funding Approval form. 

 
 
 
 

Sub-recipient Signatory Representative 
 

 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________________  
Mr. Gregory Rose      Date 
City Manager        
City of University City 
 
 
 
 
 

State Signatory Representative 
 
 
  
 
 

 
   
James Remillard, Director      Date 
Missouri State Emergency Management Agency       

K - 2 - 8



Funded
1163 Wilson
1157 Wilson
1153 Wilson
1149 Wilson
1131 Wilson
7439 Ahern
7442 Ahern
1052 Wilson
1087 Wilson
1083 Wilson
1079 Wilson
1075 Wilson

75% Federal
25% Local

100% Federal
No Local Match

Hafner Court - Funded

K - 2 - 9



K - 2 - 10



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20241209-03

Funding Approval Form and Grant Agreement for FEMA’s Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
(HMGP) grant.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development / Wards 2 and 3

Consent Agenda yes

City Manager recommends approval

Use of OMCI Funding and American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to fund the local match 
project cost of $1,020,710.02.

Fund Reserves Fund Reserves

This is the Funding Approval Form and Grant Agreement for the FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
(HMGP) grant. This $4,082,840.06 grant is 75% federally-funded, with 25% ($1,020,710.02) funded by the 
City of university City. The focus of the grant includes twelve (12) single-family homes on Wilson Avenue 
and the western-most building of the Hafner Court Apartments, as shown on the Map of Addresses.

Attached are the U-City HMGP Award Packet, a Map of Addresses and Resolution Number 
2024-06, passed on June 10, 2024, giving the City Council’s approval to participate in the HMGP 
Grant.

Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregory Rose December 9, 2024

K - 3 - 1



K - 3 - 2



K - 3 - 3



Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
City of University City HMGP Buyout 
(FEMA-DR-4665-MO, Project #0014) 
Funding Approval Form 
�

�
�
Name and Address of Recipient: 
Missouri Emergency Management Agency 
P.O. Box 116 
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102 

 
Name and Address of Subrecipient: 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
UEI: Q4NLF9FNJZW7 

 
Disaster Number: 
 
FEMA-DR-4665-MO, Project #0014 

 
ALN: 
 
97.039 

 
Grant Award Date: 
 
November 20, 2024 

 
Anticipated Project Completion Date:�
 
November 20, 2026 (24 months) 

 
Non-Federal Match Source (25% Cost Share): 
The City of University City will provide the local non-federal match in cash in the amount of $1,020,710.02.�

�
Project Description:  
Acquire and demolish thirteen (13) flood-prone properties and deed restrict them into open space for 
perpetuity. 

�
�

Budget 
 
Description: 

 
Federal 
Award 

 
Non-Federal 

Match 

 
Total  

Award 
 
Total Funds Awarded: 

 
$3,062,130.04 

 
$1,020,710.02 

 
$4,082,840.06 

 
�

Signature of Authorized Representatives:�
 
 

 
   
Gregory Rose, City Manager                   Date 
City of University City   
 
 

 
   
Ronald C. Broxton, Recovery Division Manager  Date 
Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 

 

�

K - 3 - 4



��

�

Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP)� 
Buyout Grant Agreement 
FEMA-DR-4665-MO, Project #0014 
 
 
This grant agreement is made by and between the Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
(SEMA), herein called the “State” and the City of University City, herein called the “Sub-recipient”.  
 
In reliance upon and in consideration of the mutual representations and obligations hereunder, the State 
and the Sub-recipient agree as follows: 
 
1. The Sub-recipient agrees to accept responsibility for adherence to this Agreement. 
 
2. The Sub-recipient agrees that any and all such amount of local funds or in-kind services or materials 

shall be equal to or greater than 25% of the total project costs. 
(A) The following documentation is required for matching cash contributions: 

-Record of source of donor, dates, rates, amounts, deposit slips 
(B) The following documentation is required for matching noncash contributions: 

-Record of donor, dates, rates, and amount. 
 
3. The Sub-recipient agrees that any proposed activity budget variances (from the Funding Approval 

form) in excess of the amount of this Agreement shall be approved by the State in writing prior to 
an obligation of funds for such activity; however, any variance shall be approved by the Sub-
recipient’s governing body in advance of an obligation of such activity.   

 
4. The Sub-recipient agrees to complete the project in its entirety as indicated in the Funding Approval 

form unless amended in writing by agreement of all parties. 
 

5. The (applicant) sub-recipient shall not contract with any entity identified on the General Services 
Administration System for Award Management (SAM) https://www.sam.gov/SAM  Excluded 
Parties List (Debarred List).  
 

6. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals: Sub-recipient must follow 2 CFR Part 200.320 (c) 
Procurement by noncompetitive proposals. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals is 
procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only one source and may be used only when 
one or more of the following circumstances apply: (1) The item is available only from a single 
source; (2) The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting 
from competitive solicitation;(3) The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly 
authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the non-Federal entity; 
or (4) After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate. 

 
7.  The Sub-recipient agrees to implement the project in accordance with the milestones identified in 

the application work schedule.  Should the Sub-recipient determine that any milestone will not be 
met, the Sub-recipient will contact the State to request approval to revise the work schedule 
accordingly. 

 
8.  The Sub-recipient agrees that any Federal funds remaining from the allocation indicated in the 

Funding Approval form after the project has been completed shall be returned to the State if they 
have been drawn to the Sub-recipient’s local depository or canceled if such funds have not been 
drawn. 
 

K - 3 - 5



��

�

9. The Sub-recipient agrees that the State and FEMA officials shall have full access to any documents 
or materials relating to this Agreement at any reasonable time.  

 
10. The Sub-recipient agrees to comply with 2 CFR Part 200.  This guidance supersedes and 

consolidates the requirements from OMB Circulars A-21, A-87, A-110, A-122, A-89, A-102, A-133, 
and A-50.  This applies to all awards issued after December 26, 2014. 
 

11. The Sub-recipient agrees to provide the State Monthly Progress Reports by the 10th of each month, 
reporting on the prior month. 

 
12. The Sub-recipient agrees to comply with any and all guidance provided by the State in regard to 

this grant to include the Local Officials Guide to Managing a Voluntary Buyout guidebook along 
with all requirements as outlined in 44 Code of Federal Regulations Part 80: Property Acquisition 
and Relocation for Open Space. 

 
13. The Sub-recipient agrees that the State and FEMA officials shall have full access to any documents 

or materials relating to this Agreement at any reasonable time. 
 
14. The Sub-recipient agrees that all funds received under this Agreement shall be held and used by 

the Sub-recipient for the purpose of accomplishing the project only and none of the funds so held 
or received shall be diverted to any other use or purpose.  

 
15. The Sub-recipient agrees that any material prepared by the Sub-recipient or persons or firms 

employed or contracted by the Sub-recipient shall not be subject to copyright, and the State shall 
have unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, distribute, or otherwise use, in whole or in part, any 
reports, data or other material prepared under this agreement. 
 

16. The Sub-recipient agrees that any approval of contracts, sub-contracts, material or service orders, 
or any other obligation by the Sub-recipient or its agents shall not be deemed an obligation by the     
State, and the State shall not be responsible for fulfillment of the Sub-recipient�s obligations. 

 
17.       Advance Payment Request Requirements: 

 
Advance Payment: For the purposes of this Grant Agreement, advance payment is 
defined as funds given to a sub-recipient in advance of the sub-recipient incurring the 
debt. For example, if a sub-recipient requests advance payment prior to paying the 
vendors bill, receiving the funds would be considered an advance payment. 
Reimbursement cannot be made until the activity has been performed, i.e. equipment 
or services has been delivered and invoiced. For example, when purchasing goods 
and services or an equipment item, reimbursement cannot be made until the item 
has been received and the vendor has billed for the item. 

  
Consequently, the sub-recipient does not have to pay the vendor before submitting the 
reimbursement request.  The sub-recipient must have incurred the debt prior to 
submitting the reimbursement request. 

 
Reimbursement prior to paying a vendor, the following cautions must be taken into 
consideration: 

 
(a) There will be a minimum dollar amount established for sub-recipient requesting a 

reimbursement with an advance payment; the dollar amount will be determined on a 
case-by-case basis. 

(b) When requesting a reimbursement with an advance payment, sub-

K - 3 - 6



��

�

recipient is required to submit proof of payment (i.e. copy of check or 
credit card statement) to SEMA within 30 days. 

 
18. In the event that the State or an audit has determined that the Sub-recipient has failed to comply 

with this Agreement, the Sub-recipient shall perform remedial actions to correct the deficiency, as 
determined by the State, which may include: 

 Repayment or reimbursement of Federal and State funds spent inappropriately to the 
State; 

 The return of Federal and State funds deposited at the Sub-recipient’s local financial 
institution to the State; 

 The return of any equipment, materials or supplies purchased, leased or lease 
purchased using Federal or State funds to the State or supplier; 

 Other actions as the State deems appropriate. 
 
19. The State may terminate this agreement in whole or in part, at any time before the date of 

completion, whenever it is determined by the State that the Sub-recipient has failed to comply with 
the conditions of this Agreement.  The State shall notify the Sub-recipient in writing of the 
determination and the reasons for the termination, together with the effective date.  The Sub-
recipient shall not incur new obligations for the terminated portion after the effective date of the 
revocation of the Agreement, and it shall be the Sub-recipient’s duty to cancel all outstanding 
obligations that are legally possible. 

 
20. The State and Sub-recipient each binds himself to his successors, executors, administrators, 

assigns and legal representatives or such other party, in respect to all covenants, agreements, and 
obligations of this agreement. 

 
21. The State may, at any time, in its sole discretion, give any consent, deferment, subordination, 

release, satisfaction, or termination of any or all of the Sub-recipient’s obligations under this 
Agreement, with or without valuable consideration, upon such terms and conditions as the State 
may determine to be (a) advisable to further the purpose of the project or to protect the State’s 
financial interest therein, and (b) consistent with both the statutory purposes of the grant and the 
limitations of the statutory authority under which it was made. 

 
22. The Sub-recipient agrees to complete such action as is required to become fully informed of all 

State and National laws and county and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner 
affecting those engaged or employed in the work, or the materials used in the work, or in any way 
affecting the conduct of the work and the Sub-recipient shall at all times observe and comply with, 
all such applicable existing and future laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees and the 
Sub-recipient further agrees to protect, indemnify and hold harmless, with respect to any damages 
arising from any completed work or tort done in performing any of the work embraced by this 
Agreement, SEMA, the State of Missouri and the Federal Emergency Management Agency and 
the officers and agents of those entities, from any claim or liability arising from or based on the 
violation of any law, ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether by the Sub-recipient or the 
Sub-recipient’s employees 

 
23. The Sub-recipient agrees that the remediation of any hazardous materials (except asbestos in 

acquisition/demolition projects) discovered during the completion of this project is the sole 
responsibility of the Sub-recipient.  The Sub-recipient must follow all Federal and State regulations.  
SEMA and FEMA will not contribute any funds or resources to the required remediation. 

 
24. The Sub-recipient agrees that it understands and accepts the responsibility under the Revised 

Statutes of Missouri (RSMo) Sections 385.525 through 285.555 (Illegal Immigrants) to ensure that 
“no business entity or employer shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 

K - 3 - 7



��

�

an unauthorized alien to perform work within the state of Missouri.”  The Sub-recipient further 
certifies that any contract awarded by the Sub-recipient will require the contracted business entity 
to comply with the references mentioned above.  The Sub-recipient understands that failure to 
comply with this requirement will subject the Sub-recipient to the penalties described in the 
references mentioned above. 

 
25. Sub-recipient agrees to make every effort to quantify and report losses avoided and success stories 

to the State, for the recognized life of the project, after an event occurs that realizes the benefit or 
objective of the project. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

K - 3 - 8



��

�

Signatory Approval of the 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Flood Buyout 

Grant Agreement 
 

The parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year indicated in the Funding Approval form. 

 
 
 
 

Sub-recipient Signatory Representative 
 

 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________________  
Gregory Rose Date 
City Manager   
City of University City 
 
 
 
 
 

State Signatory Representative 
 
 
  
 
 

 
   
James Remillard, Director Date 
Missouri State Emergency Management Agency 
       

K - 3 - 9



Funded
1163 Wilson
1157 Wilson
1153 Wilson
1149 Wilson
1131 Wilson
7439 Ahern
7442 Ahern
1052 Wilson
1087 Wilson
1083 Wilson
1079 Wilson
1075 Wilson

75% Federal
25% Local

100% Federal
No Local Match

Hafner Court - Funded

K - 3 - 10



K - 3 - 11





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20241209-04

Tree Removal Contract for Pershing and Ferguson Improvement Project

Mirela Celaj, Interim Director of PW Public Works
Consent No

The City Manager recommends approval of  the contract agreement with Omni Tree Service 
Inc.

Pershing tree removal:  $72,400.00; Ferguson tree removal: $ 21,480.00  
Funds would be covered by Parks Stormwater Sales Tax Fund Reserves.  Funds were carried forward from FY2024 for 
Centennial Commons painting. These funds would be re-allocated to fund this project.

$93,880.00  14.40.90.8100

Fund 14 Fund 14

During the course of the planning and assessment, it has become evident that certain trees within the 
project area are in conflict with both the street and sidewalk, posing challenges from both a construction 
and utility perspective. This issue must be addressed before the construction can proceed as scheduled. 
The City sought bids for this project and received four(4) responses(bid tabulation attached).

Staff recommends that the Council approves the contract with Omni Tree Service Inc. for the tree 
removal to ensure the timely and safe progression of the street construction projects. This action is 
critical to avoid further delays and maintain our commitment to the project timeline. Since this 
wasn't planned for during the initial application phase, it wasn't included in the budget. Funds were 
carried forward from FY2024 in the amount of $169,000 for Centennial Commons painting.  If 
approved, a portion of these funds would be re-allocated to cover the costs of the tree(s) removal.  

-Staff Report
-Bid tabulation
-Recommendation
-Bid documents

Infrastructure 
Safety

City Manager, Gegory Rose December 9, 2024

K - 4 - 1



www.ucitymo.org 

   
AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

 

MEETING DATE: December 9, 2024 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works  

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Tree Removal Contract for Pershing and Ferguson Improvement 
Project 

 

 
ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Both the Pershing Avenue and Ferguson Avenue Improvement Projects are scheduled for 

construction in 2025. Although tree removal was not included in the initial application phase, 

further planning and assessment have revealed that certain trees are in conflict with the street 

and sidewalk construction from both a construction and utility perspective. After assessing the 

situation, City staff has determined that hiring a contractor to remove the trees prior to the 

construction phase would be more economical and would not cause any delays to the overall 

project timeline. City advertised for bids for this tree removal project on the City’s website as 

well as e-mailed the information to various companies. City received four (4) responses (bid 

tabulation attached). Staff recommends that the Council approve the contract with Omni Tree 

Services Inc. as the lowest responsible bidder.  

 

Omni Tree Services Inc. has submitted a proposed cost for tree removals for both the 

Pershing Avenue and Ferguson Avenue Improvement Projects. The contract agreement and 

a detailed breakdown of the proposed costs are attached for your review. The proposal 

includes the removal of 59 trees at a total cost of $72,400.00 for Pershing Project and 18 

trees at a total cost of $ 21,480.00 for Ferguson Project.     

K - 4 - 2



K - 4 - 3



K - 4 - 4



K - 4 - 5



K - 4 - 6



K - 4 - 7



K - 4 - 8



K - 4 - 9



K - 4 - 10



K - 4 - 11



K - 4 - 12



K - 4 - 13



K - 4 - 14



K - 4 - 15



K - 4 - 16



K - 4 - 17



K - 4 - 18



K - 4 - 19



K - 4 - 20



K - 4 - 21



K - 4 - 22



K - 4 - 23



K - 4 - 24



K - 4 - 25



K - 4 - 26



K - 4 - 27





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20241209-05

Acceptance of ARPA Grant for Lucas Mechanical CPR device

William Hinson Fire
Consent no

City Manager recommends approval of the ARPA grant including 10% matching funds. 

$9,101.33 from current fire department medical supplies budget, $81,911.98 from federal 
ARPA Grant funds

$9,101.33

1-35-25_7530 1-35-25-7530

Received approval for 90/10 ARPA grant funding for purchase of medical equipment. 

ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) grant funds were offered for the purchase of medical 
equipment.  We submitted the application for the purchase of 3 additional Lucas CPR 
devices.  These devices are used to provide consistent high-quality CPR for patients in 
cardiac arrest. This purchase will allow us to put a Lucas on each of our front-line apparatus.

Grant Information, see attached

Fiscal responsibility and Public safety

City Manager, Gegory Rose 12/6/2024

K - 5 - 1



K - 5 - 2



K - 5 - 3



K - 5 - 4



K - 5 - 5



K - 5 - 6



K - 5 - 7



K - 5 - 8



K - 5 - 9



K - 5 - 10



K - 5 - 11



K - 5 - 12



K - 5 - 13



K - 5 - 14



K - 5 - 15



K - 5 - 16



K - 5 - 17



K - 5 - 18



K - 5 - 19



K - 5 - 20



K - 5 - 21



K - 5 - 22



K - 5 - 23



K - 5 - 24



K - 5 - 25



K - 5 - 26



K - 5 - 27



K - 5 - 28



K - 5 - 29



K - 5 - 30



K - 5 - 31



K - 5 - 32



K - 5 - 33



K - 5 - 34



K - 5 - 35



K - 5 - 36



K - 5 - 37



K - 5 - 38



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20241209-06

DISPOSAL SERVICE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

Mirela Celaj, Interim Director of PW Public Works

The City Manager recommends approval of 20-year extension to the current Disposal 
Service Agreement with Champ Landfill Company, LLC.

The current disposal service agreement dated June 1, 2024  is set to expire on December 
31, 2024. In order to ensure continuity, an extension of the agreement for an additional 20 
years is proposed. 

The initial term of the agreement shall be extended for a period of twenty (20) years 
commencing on January 1, 2025 and in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth 
in the agreement amendment attached to this agenda item.

-Disposal Service Agreement Amendment

-Public Safety
-Public Health
-Environmental Sustainability
-Continuity of Services

City Manager, Gegory Rose December 9, 2024

K - 6 - 1



DISPOSAL SERVICE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

This Disposal Service Agreement Amendment (“Amendment”) is made and entered into 
this 1st day of January, 2025, by and between the City of University City, a Missouri municipal 
corporation (“Customer”), and Champ Landfill Company, LLC, a Missouri limited liability 
company (“Owner”). 

RECITALS 

A. Customer and Fred Weber, Inc. entered into Disposal Service Agreement
(“Agreement”) dated June 1, 2004, for an initial term ending December 31, 2024, for Fred 
Weber, Inc, to receive and dispose of Customer’s solid waste at the Fred Weber Landfill in the 
Village of Champ in St. Louis County, Missouri. A copy of the Agreement is attached hereto. 

B. Owner subsequently acquired the Fred Weber Landfill and is a successor to Fred
Weber, Inc. under the Agreement. 

C. The Agreement provides that the parties may extend the Agreement beyond the
initial term. 

D. Customer and Owner desire to extend the initial term for a period of twenty (20)
years in accordance with the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth in this Amendment. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Customer 
and Owner agree as follows: 

1. All references to “Owner” in the Agreement shall hereby mean “Champ Landfill
Company, LLC.”

2. The term of the Agreement is hereby extended for a period of twenty (20) years
commencing on January 1, 2025.

3. The disposal rate in Agreement Exhibit A.7 shall be $64.41 per ton, inclusive of  an
environmental fee, fuel fees and surcharges, St. Louis County fees, and Missouri
Department of Natural Resources fees.

4. Article IV-Disposal Rates, is hereby amended by deleting the following sentence
therein: “Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Owner agrees to accept a lower disposal
rate from another political subdivision or governmental entity in St. Louis County,
Customer shall receive such lower disposal rate, excluding fees, increases in fee,
transportation and handling.”

5. Customer shall maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this
Agreement, worker’s compensation, employer’s liability, general liability,
automobile liability and excess/umbrella insurance coverage in amounts not less
than Customer’s current limits.

K - 6 - 2



6. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the provisions of the Agreement
shall remain unaltered and in full force and effect.

7. This Amendment shall be effective on January 1, 2025.
8. Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in one or more facsimile or

original counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and both of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

9. Ratification; Full Force and Effect.  All terms and provisions of the Agreement not
amended hereby, either expressly or by necessary implication, shall remain in full
force and effect.  The parties further acknowledge and agree that all the terms and
provisions of the Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, shall remain in full
force and effect.  From and after the date of this Amendment, all references to the
term “Agreement” in this Amendment and in the original Agreement shall include
the terms contained in this Amendment.

10. Conflicting Provisions.  In the event of any conflict between the original terms of
the Agreement and this Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall prevail.

11. Authorization.  Each party executing this Amendment represents and warrants that it
is duly authorized to cause this Amendment to be executed and delivered.

CUSTOMER:

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 

__________________________ 
By: Gregory Rose 
Title: City Manager   
6801 Delmar Boulevard  
University City, MO 63130 
(314) 505-8534 
grose@ucitymo.org 

K - 6 - 3

mailto:grose@ucitymo.org


OWNER: 

CHAMP LANDFILL COMPANY, LLC 

___________________________ 
By: _______________________ 
Title: ______________________ 
2443 Creve Coeur Mill Road 
Maryland Heights, MO 63043 
Telephone: _________________
E-mail: ____________________

K - 6 - 4



K - 6 - 5



K - 6 - 6



K - 6 - 7



K - 6 - 8



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

L - 1 - 1

CM20241209-01

City Manager General Updates

Administration - All
City Manager's Report

General updates as provided by the City Manager.

City Manager, Gregory Rose 12/9/2024





CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20241209-02

First (1st) Quarter Financial Report - September 30, 2024

Keith Cole - Director of Finance Finance / All
City Manager's Report Yes

City Manager is recommending acceptance of the 1st Quarter Financial Report as of 
September 30, 2024.

General Fund - revenues (under) expenses ($4,095,335); Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - revenues (under) expenses 
($12,713); Capital Improvement Sales Tax - revenues over expenses $176,536; Park Stormwater Sales Tax - revenues (under) expenses 
($289,894); Public Safety Sales Tax - revenues over expenses $361,694; Fire Protection Sales Tax - revenues over expenses $75,404 

n/a n/a

n/a n/a

A powerpoint presentation will consist of an overview on the major funds for the 1st Quarter 
of fiscal year 2025, as of September 30, 2024.

Major Funds consists of:  General Fund, Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Fund, 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund, Park Stormwater Sales Tax Fund, Public Safety Sales 
Tax Fund, and Fire Protection Service Sales Tax Fund

n/a

1. Powerpoint Presentation - 1st Quarter, September 30, 2024, FY2025
2. 1st Quarter Financial Report - Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose December 9, 2024

L - 2 - 1



1st Quarter September 30, 2024

FY2025 Presentation

December 9, 2024
By

Keith Cole
Director of Finance1

L - 2 - 2



General Fund - Revenues
Adjusted Budget    $25,390,750

YTD Actual     $4,060,635

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  16.0%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to
 same quarter of FY2024  $1,276,918

Key Points:

 Increase in Gross Receipts Tax of roughly $101,990.  The increase due to receiving more revenue in electric and 
water compared to what was received in PY 1st Quarter. 

 Increase in Services Charges of roughly $216,930  The increase mainly from collecting Ambulance Services 
charges.

 Increase in Interest Revenue of roughly $92,020.  Increase due to favorable market conditions in 1st Quarter.

 Increase in Other Revenue of roughly $791,490.  Increase mainly from receiving funds from the Subtext 
Development Issuance Fees, Legal Fees, and payment from Seafood City for outstanding bills.

 Increase in Inspection Fees & Permits of roughly $82,500.  Increase due to Building & Zoning permits.

 Note:  The bulk of property tax revenue the City receives, will come during the months of December 2024 and 
January 2025.      

Overall, revenues as a percent of budget show an increase of 6.4% when compared to the same quarter of FY24.

2

L - 2 - 3



General Fund – Revenues Percentage as of YTD 
Actuals

Property Taxes
1.5%

Sales & Use Tax
17.0%

Intergovernmental
6.3%

Grants
0.0%

Licenses
0.3%

Gross Receipts
28.8%

Inspection Fees 
and Permits

7.3%

Charges for 
Municipal 
Services

8.5%

Parks and 
Recreation Fees

1.6%

Municipal Court 
and Parking

5.0%

Interest
3.1%

Other Revenues
20.5%

3

L - 2 - 4



General Fund - Expenditures
Adjusted Budget     $30,568,371

YTD Actual      $7,305,970

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  23.9%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to
 same quarter of FY2024  $673,083

Key Points:

 Increase in expenditures in Police Department of roughly $374,400.  This is mainly due to 
increase in personnel services, such as overtime, medical insurance.  Of the $374,400, roughly 
$236,980 is due from payroll and how the pay period falls between fiscal years, first part of July.  

 Increase in expenditures in Fire Department of roughly $124,940. This is mainly due to increase in 
personnel services and how the pay period falls between fiscal years, first part of July.

 Increase in expenditures in Aquatics of roughly $117,700. This is mainly due to increase in 
professional services (Midwest Pool Management), electricity, and water.

 Increase in expenditures in Centennial Commons of roughly $45,600. This is mainly due to 
increase in Salaries Part-Time and electricity. 

Overall, the expenditures as a percent of budget increased by 2.8% when compared to the same 
quarter of FY2024. 4

L - 2 - 5



General Fund – Expenditures Percentage as of YTD 
Actuals

     Total Expenditure 14,611,940$          200.0%
Legislative

0.9%
City Manager's Office

2.4%

Communications
0.9% Human Resources

1.0%
Finance

4.4%
Information 
Technology

2.5%

Municipal Court
1.6%

Police
36.0%Fire

22.8%

Public Works - Admin
0.6%

Public Area 
Maintenance

3.4%

Facil ities 
Maintenance

4.0%

Public Works - Capital 
Imp

0.6%

Planning & 
Development

6.9%

Parks & Recreation -
Parks Maint

5.9%

Community 
Center
0.3%

Aquatics
2.5%

Centennial Commons
3.2%

Parks & 
Recreation -
Capital Imp

0.0%

5

L - 2 - 6



Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - 
Revenues
Adjusted Budget     $1,200,300

YTD Actual      $92,722

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  7.7%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to
   same quarter of FY2024   $2,452

Key Points:

 Sales Tax revenue for the first quarter of FY2025 has shown a slight 
increase of roughly 2.7% when compared to the same quarter of 
FY2024. 

 Of the $92,722 sales tax revenue, roughly $52,340, or 56.4%, is 
generated from the TIF.  

 Note:  sales tax revenue is based on point of sale

6

L - 2 - 7



Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - 
Expenditures
Adjusted Budget     $882,915

YTD Actual      $105,435

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  5.7%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to
   same quarter of FY2024   $63,561

Key Points:

 Increase in expenditures mainly from façade improvement program 
and professional services.    

7

L - 2 - 8



Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Revenues
Adjusted Budget     $2,940,200

YTD Actual      $413,386

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  14.1%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to 
   same quarter of FY2024   $155,758

Key Points:

 Increase due to receiving reimbursement on Westgate Ave Improvement 
project and a refund excess cost share for River Des Peres of $54,110.

 Note:  revenue is generated from pooled sales tax from other cities in the 
county and is based on per capita.   

8

L - 2 - 9



Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Expenditures
Adjusted Budget     $2,417,198

YTD Actual      $136,850

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  5.7%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to
   same quarter of FY2024   $(14,838)

Key Points:

 Decrease in expenditures mainly from capital improvement projects that 
have been budgeted, have not been scheduled thus far in the fiscal year.  

 

9

L - 2 - 10



Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Revenues

Adjusted Budget     $2,100,200

YTD Actual      $150,808

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  7.2%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to
   same quarter of FY2024   $(2,225)

Key Points:

 Sales Tax revenue for the first quarter of FY2025 has shown a slight 
decrease of roughly 1.4% when compared to the same quarter of FY2024. 

 Of the $150,808 sales tax revenue, roughly $70,045, or 46.4%, is generated 
from the TIF.  

 Note:  sales tax revenue is based on point of sale

3rd quarter revenues for FY2021 are within budget 10

L - 2 - 11



Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Expenditures

Adjusted Budget     $1,401,865

YTD Actual      $440,702

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  31.4%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to 
   same quarter of FY2024   $357,041

Key Points:

 Increase in expenditures mainly from up front costs to the Army Corps of 
Engineers OMCI Stormwater Reimbursement Detention Basin 4 project. 

   

11

L - 2 - 12



Public Safety Sales Tax - Revenues

Adjusted Budget     $2,400,200

YTD Actual      $191,560

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  8.0%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to 
 same quarter of FY2024  $(20,874)

Key Points:

 A small decrease, but thus far, revenues appears to be within reason when 
compared to 1st quarter of FY2024.  

 

12

L - 2 - 13



Public Safety Sales Tax - Expenditures
Adjusted Budget     $75,314

YTD Actual      $(170,134)

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  (225.9%)

Increase/(Decrease) compared to

same quarter of FY2024   $(6,037)

Key Points:

 The negative expenditures is due to a check being voided in July, however, 
the void appears to be in error.  Looking into the matter to get resolved.  

13

L - 2 - 14



Fire Protection Service Sales Tax - Revenues
Adjusted Budget  $1,050,000

YTD Actual  $75,404

Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  7.2%

Increase/(Decrease) compared to
   same quarter of FY2024 $(1,113)

Key Points:

 Sales Tax revenue for the first quarter of FY2025 has shown a slight
decrease of roughly 1.4% when compared to the same quarter of
FY2024.  Revenue appears to be within reason.

 Of the $75,404 sales tax revenue, roughly $35,020, or 46.4%, is
generated from the TIF.

 Note:  FY2025 Budget, Fire Protection Service Sales Tax was broken
out into its own fund. Sales tax revenue is based on point of sale.

14

L - 2 - 15



Fire Protection Service Sales Tax - Expenditures
 No Operational Expenditures have been budgeted for FY2025. 

15

L - 2 - 16



Questions

16

L - 2 - 17



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

General Fund Revenues:

Property Taxes 4,029,500         4,029,500         60,035              1.5% 45,573              1.1%
Sales and Use Taxes 7,600,000         7,600,000         690,470            9.1% 790,662            9.0%
Gross Receipts Taxes 6,130,000         6,130,000         1,169,368         19.1% 1,067,371         16.6%
Intergovernmental 2,615,000         2,615,000         257,365            9.8% 233,821            8.6%
Grants - - 131 100.0% - 0.0%
Licenses 707,300            707,300            13,793              2.0% 22,662              2.6%
Inspection Fees and Permits 1,329,450         1,329,450         297,753            22.4% 215,235            16.2%
Charges for Municipal Services 1,558,000         1,558,000         344,554            22.1% 127,615            7.6%
Parks and Recreation Fees 445,000            445,000            64,953              14.6% 36,331              9.1%
Municipal Court and Parking 663,500            663,500            204,440            30.8% 170,196            22.3%
Interest Revenue 36,000              36,000              126,402            351.1% 34,373              8.9%
Other Revenues 277,000            277,000            831,371            300.1% 39,878              10.9%

Total Revenues 25,390,750       25,390,750       4,060,635         16.0% 2,783,717 9.6%

General Fund Expenditures:

Legislative Services 233,710            233,710            62,779              62,779              26.9% 52,418              23.1%
City Manager's Office 755,377            755,377            176,754            176,754            23.4% 207,026            18.8%
Communications 423,480            423,480            66,777              67,873              15.8% 80,304              23.9%
Human Resources 377,707            377,707            71,312              71,705              18.9% 75,565              20.4%
Finance Department 1,106,400         1,106,400         323,524            323,524            29.2% 279,863            29.2%
Information Technology 493,898            493,898            181,238            215,792            36.7% 164,941            28.1%
Municipal Court 466,445            466,445            114,302            114,302            24.5% 99,697              22.9%
Police Department 10,944,654       10,944,654       2,629,290         3,021,840         24.0% 2,254,854         22.6%
Fire Department 7,104,218         7,104,218         1,665,466         1,701,368         23.4% 1,540,525         22.4%
Public Works - Admin. 294,436            294,436            47,369              47,926              16.1% 66,147              24.4%
Public Area Maintenance 1,555,456         1,555,456         249,404            286,764            16.0% 224,514            14.1%
Facilities Maintenance 990,952            990,952            289,050            289,050            29.2% 301,950            27.3%
Public Works - Capital Imp - - 44,865              122,575            100.0% 27,150              4.4%
Planning & Development 2,151,925         2,151,925         505,391            505,391            23.5% 399,934            20.1%
Parks & Recreation - Parks Maint 1,999,694         1,999,694         432,657            576,750            21.6% 567,132            27.2%
Community Center 172,476            172,476            23,752              23,752              13.8% 29,458              11.9%
Aquatics 581,213            581,213            185,776            695,883            32.0% 68,059              10.2%
Centennial Commons 916,330            916,330            233,101            233,101            25.4% 187,491            17.3%
Parks & Recreation - Capital Imp - - 3,163 71,801              100.0% 5,859 0.6%

Total Expenditures 30,568,371       30,568,371       7,305,970         8,608,930         23.9% 6,632,887         21.1%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (5,177,621)        (5,177,621)        (3,245,335)        (3,849,170)        

Insurance Recoveries - - - - 
Transfer In from Other Funds 5,185,786         5,185,786         - - 
Transfer Out to Other Funds (2,308,000)        (2,308,000)        (850,000)           (1,654,000)        
Total Other Financing Sources 2,877,786         2,877,786         (850,000)           (1,654,000)        

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures (2,299,835)        (2,299,835)        (4,095,335)        (5,503,170)        

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 18



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax

Sales and Use Taxes 1,200,000         1,200,000         92,722              7.7%  90,270              8.0%
Interest Revenue 300                   300                   -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 1,200,300         1,200,300         92,722              7.7% 90,270              8.0%

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax

Personnel Services 224,325            224,325            53,381              53,381              23.8% 43,983              17.3%
Contractual Services 507,590            507,590            19,004              19,004              3.7% 12,891              1.0%
Materials & Supplies 1,000                1,000                -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Capital Outlay 150,000            150,000            33,050              33,050              22.0% (15,000)             -8.6%

Total Expenditures 882,915            882,915            105,435            105,435            11.9% 41,874              2.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 317,385            317,385            (12,713)             48,396              

Transfer Out -                    -                    -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 317,385            317,385            (12,713)             48,396              

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 19



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Capital Improvement Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 2,940,000         2,940,000         232,973            7.9%  257,628            8.8%
Grant Revenue -                    -                    126,302            100.0% -                    0.0%
Miscellaneous Revenues -                    -                    54,111              100.0% -                    0.0%
Interest Revenue 200                   200                   -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 2,940,200         2,940,200         413,386            14.1% 257,628            8.8%

Capital Improvement Sales Tax:

Personnel Services 351,361            351,361            95,142              95,142              27.1% 78,790              21.7%
Contractual Services 1,997                1,997                271                   271                   13.6% 472                   39.3%
Capital Outlay 2,063,840         2,063,840         41,437              273,865            2.0% 72,426              2.5%

Total Expenditures 2,417,198         2,417,198         136,850            369,278            5.7% 151,688            4.7%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 523,002            523,002            276,536            105,940            

Transfer Out (1,782,760)        (1,782,760)        (100,000)           -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (1,259,758)        (1,259,758)        176,536            105,940            

FY 2025

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
City of University City

As of September 30, 2024

L - 2 - 20



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Park and Stormwater Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 2,100,000         2,100,000         150,808            7.2%  153,033            7.7%
Interest Revenue 200                   200                   -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 2,100,200         2,100,200         150,808            7.2% 153,033            7.3%

Park and Stormwater Sales Tax:

Personnel Services 316,109            316,109            68,124              68,124              21.6% 61,432              21.6%
Contractual Services 756                   756                   3,244                3,244                429.1% 137                   2.3%
Capital outlay 1,085,000         1,085,000         369,334            385,236            34.0% 22,092              1.6%

Total Expenditures 1,401,865         1,401,865         440,702            456,604            31.4% 83,661              5.1%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 698,335            698,335            (289,894)           69,372              

Transfer Out (1,252,488)        (1,252,488)        -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (554,153)           (554,153)           (289,894)           69,372              

FY 2025
As of September 30, 2024

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2 - 21



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Public Safety Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 2,400,000         2,400,000         191,560            8.0%  212,434            9.1%
Interest Revenue 200                   200                   -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 2,400,200         2,400,200         191,560            8.0% 212,434            9.1%

Public Safety Sales Tax:

Personnel Services 75,314              75,314              18,356              18,356              24.4% 15,136              21.2%
Capital Outlay -                    -                    (188,490)           (188,490)           -100.0% 34,550              3.6%
Debt Service -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 114,411            99.8%

Total Expenditures 75,314              75,314              (170,134)           (170,134)           -225.9% 164,097            14.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 2,324,886         2,324,886         361,694            48,337              

Transfer Out (1,955,533)        (1,955,533)        -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (1,955,533)        (1,955,533)        -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 369,353            369,353            361,694            48,337              

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
As of September 30, 2024

FY 2025

City of University City

L - 2 - 22



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Fire Protection Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 1,050,000         1,050,000         75,404              7.2% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 1,050,000         1,050,000         75,404              7.2% -                    0.0%

Fire Protection Sales Tax:

Personnel Services -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Contractual Services -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Capital Outlay -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 1,050,000         1,050,000         75,404              -                    

Transfer Out to General Fund (1,050,000)        (1,050,000)        -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (1,050,000)        (1,050,000)        -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                    -                    75,404              -                    

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 23



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Fleet Operations:

Service to Other Jurisdictions -                    -                    -                    0.0% 43                     100.0%

Total Revenue -                    -                    -                    0.0% 43                     100.0%

Fleet Operations:

Expenditures 1,690,757         1,690,757         417,764            417,764            24.7% 450,783            26.2%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (1,690,757)        (1,690,757)        (417,764)           (450,740)           

Transfer In from Other Funds 1,700,000         1,700,000         750,000            1,654,000         

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 9,243                9,243                332,236            1,203,260         

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2 - 24



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Solid Waste Fund:

Service Charges 3,400,000         3,400,000         715,968            21.1% 1,362,497         42.2%
Miscellaneous Revenues 40,200              40,200              4,401                10.9%  4,963                12.3%
Grants 120,000            120,000            -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 3,560,200         3,560,200         720,369            20.2% 1,367,460         41.5%

Solid Waste Fund:

Administration 294,359            294,359            64,395              64,395              21.9% 91,867              32.8%
Operations 2,486,135         2,486,135         745,014            745,014            30.0% 502,314            19.4%
Leaf Collection 688,133            688,133            13,903              538,903            2.0% 12,153              2.9%
Capital Improvement 275,000            275,000            136,152            401,943            49.5% -                    0.0%
Grants 120,000            120,000            -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures 3,863,627         3,863,627         959,464            1,750,255         24.8% 606,334            15.8%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (303,427)           (303,427)           (239,095)           761,126            

Transfer In -                    -                    200,000            -                 
Transfer Out -                    -                    -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (303,427)           (303,427)           (39,095)             761,126            

City of University City

FY 2025
As of September 30, 2024

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2 - 25



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Debt Service Fund:

Other Revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0%  -                    0.0%

Total Revenues -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Debt Service Fund:

Expenses -                    -                    -                    0.0% 12                     100.0%

Total Expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 12                     100.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                    -                    -                    (12)                    

Transfer In from Other Funds 1,000,000         1,000,000         -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 1,000,000         1,000,000         -                    (12)                    

FY 2025

City of University City

As of September 30, 2024
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2 - 26



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Sewer Lateral Fund:

Service Charges 570,000            570,000            8,379                1.5%  7,141                1.3%

Total Revenues 570,000            570,000            8,379                1.5% 7,141                1.3%

Sewer Lateral Fund:

Personal Services 93,005              93,005              23,181              23,181              24.9% 19,189              20.4%
Contractual Services 8,250                8,250                4,222                4,222                51.2% 4,250                48.4%
Sewer Lateral Reimbursement 400,000            400,000            48,226              83,786              12.1% 38,870              10.3%

Total Expenditures 501,255            501,255            75,629              111,189            15.1% 62,309              12.9%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 68,745              68,745              (67,250)             (55,168)             

Transfer Out to General Fund (45,000)             (45,000)             -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 23,745              23,745              (67,250)             (55,168)             

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 27



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Grants:

Grant Revenue 653,000            653,000            -                    0.0%  -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 653,000            653,000            -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Grants:

Capital outlay 653,000            653,000            -                    -                    0.0% 8,744                0.8%

Total Expenditures 653,000            653,000            -                    -                    0.0% 8,744                0.8%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                    -                    -                    (8,744)               

Transfer Out to General Fund -                    -                    -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                    -                    -                    (8,744)               

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 28



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Capital Projects Fund:

Interest Revenue -                    -                    188,661            100.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues -                    -                    188,661            100.0% -                    0.0%

Capital Projects Fund:

Capital Outlay -                    -                    119,360            24,118,744       100.0% -                    0.0%
Other -                    -                    403,982            403,982            100.0% -                    0.0%
Debt Service -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures -                    -                    523,342            24,522,726       100.0% -                    0.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                    -                    (334,681)           -                    

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds -                    -                    25,795,000       -                    
Original Issue Premium -                    -                    1,708,111         -                    
Transfer Out -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total Other Financing Sources -                    -                    27,503,111       -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                    -                    27,168,430       -                    

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 29



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Parking Garage:

Parking Revenue 115,000            115,000            30,666              26.7%  27,223              23.8%
Miscellaneous 54,000              54,000              13,638              25.3% 13,324              14.8%

Total Revenues 169,000            169,000            44,304              26.2% 40,547              19.8%

Parking Garage:

Personnel Services 20,000              20,000              -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Contractual Services 81,770              81,770              30,037              30,037              36.7% 29,539              37.3%
Material and Supplies 18,000              18,000              -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures 119,770            119,770            30,037              30,037              25.1% 29,539              29.8%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 49,230              49,230              14,267              11,008              

Transfer Out (153,220)           (153,220)           -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (103,990)           (103,990)           14,267              11,008              

FY 2025

City of University City

As of September 30, 2024
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

L - 2 - 30



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Golf Course:

Golf Course Revenue 1,000,000         1,000,000         443,036            44.3% 504,254            56.0%
Miscellaneous -                    -                    -                    0.0%  210                   0.0%

Total Revenues 1,000,000         1,000,000         443,036            44.3% 504,464            56.1%

Golf Course:

Personnel Services 574,760            574,760            155,122            155,122            27.0% 150,440            32.2%
Contractual Services 270,626            270,626            95,819              134,289            35.4% 111,824            44.5%
Material and Supplies 173,600            173,600            21,135              21,135              12.2% 46,437              28.3%
Capital outlay 125,500            125,500            -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Expenditures 1,144,486         1,144,486         272,076            310,546            23.8% 308,701            33.4%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (144,486)           (144,486)           170,960            195,763            

Transfer out (96,020)             (96,020)             -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (240,506)           (240,506)           170,960            195,763            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 31



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T2) RPA-1

TIF Revenue -                    -                    193,425            100.0% 153,445            7.5%
CID Revenue -                    -                    443,242            100.0% 335,529            22.2%
Property Taxes -                    -                    -                    0.0% 6,361                11.0%
Interest -                    -                    55,115              100.0% 64,180              21.1%

Total Revenues -                   -                   691,782            100.0% 559,515            14.2%

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T2) RPA-1

Total Expenditures -                   -                   6,820                -                100.0% 3,660                0.1%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                   -                   684,962            555,855            

Transfer In from Other Funds -                   -                   -                   -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                   -                   684,962            555,855            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 32



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Third Ward Revitalization (T3) RPA-2

Property Taxes -                    -                    4,912                100.0% -                    0.0%
Miscellaneous Revenue 92,000              92,000              -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Interest -                    -                    35,529              100.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 92,000              92,000              40,441              44.0% -                   0.0%

Third Ward Revitalization (T3) RPA-2

Total Expenditures -                   -                   39,140              -                100.0% 72,778              33.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 92,000              92,000              1,301                (72,778)            

Transfer In 212,000            212,000            -                   -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 304,000            304,000            1,301                (72,778)            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 33



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T4) RPA-3

Property Taxes -                    -                    3,870                100.0% 10,751              2.3%

Total Revenues -                   -                   3,870                100.0% 10,751              2.1%

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T4) RPA-3

Total Expenditures -                   -                   -                   -                0.0% -                   0.0%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                   -                   3,870                10,751              

Transfer In from Other Funds -                    -                    -                    -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                   -                   3,870                10,751              

City of University City

As of September 30, 2024
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

FY 2025

L - 2 - 34



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Police and Fire Pension:

Property Taxes 1,190,000         1,190,000         11,986              1.0%  (76,009)            -7.6%
Miscellaneous 500                   500                   -                    0.0% 1                       0.0%
Interest Revenue 1,250,000         1,250,000         1,742,500         139.4% (652,610)          -130.5%

Total Revenues 2,440,500         2,440,500         1,754,486         71.9% (728,618)          -32.5%

Police and Fire Pension:

Pension Administration 164,151            164,151            46,469              46,469          28.3% 36,457              28.1%
Pension Benefits 2,675,562         2,675,562         591,874            591,874        22.1% 858,117            39.3%

Total Expenditures 2,839,713         2,839,713         638,343            638,343        22.5% 894,574            38.6%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (399,213)          (399,213)          1,116,143         (1,623,192)       

Transfer In from Other Funds 545,235            545,235            -                   -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 146,022            146,022            1,116,143         (1,623,192)       

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 35



2025 Actual As FY 2024 FY 2024
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 1st Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Non-Uniformed Pension:

Miscellaneous 1,002,650         1,002,650         79,242              7.9% 74,556              4.3%
Interest Revenue 1,250,000         1,250,000         1,905,967         152.5% (708,082)          -141.6%

Total Revenues 2,252,650         2,252,650         1,985,209         88.1% -633,526 -28.4%

Non-Uniformed Pension:

Pension Administration 215,820            215,820            93,903              93,903          43.5% 55,616              27.8%
Pension Benefits 1,489,540         1,489,540         389,588            389,588        26.2% 391,924            27.6%

Total Expenditures 1,705,360         1,705,360         483,491            483,491        28.4% 447,540 27.6%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 547,290            547,290            1,501,718         (1,081,066)

Transfer In -                   -                   -                   -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 547,290            547,290            1,501,718         (1,081,066)

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of September 30, 2024
FY 2025

L - 2 - 36



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20241209-01

Compensation Ordinance Adjustments

Amy Williams - Director of HR HR
New Business - Bill 9563 Yes

City Manager recommends updating the Pay Ordinance with the following changes: 
- Reclassifying one Assistant City Manager to Deputy City Manager, Support Services 
- Renaming the other Deputy City Manager/Director of Economic Development to Deputy City Manager, Development 
- Reclassifying Sanitation Superintendent to the Director of Sanitation 
- Reclassify one Economic Development Specialist to Economic Development Manager 
- Create a Third Ward Revitalization Coordinator

At the maximum salary level, the maximum fiscal impact potential could be up to:  
- $25,365 for the DCM, $23,335 for the Director of Sanitation, and $13,373 for the Economic Development Manager
- $116,243 for the Third Ward Revitalization Coordinator

0 NA

General Fund – 01 General Fund – 01

The proposed ordinance seeks to adjust the structure of the administrative team, by elevating one Assistant City Manager 
position to a Deputy City Manager overseeing IT, HR, Facilities and Communications. The DCM of Development will 
oversee Community Development, Public Works, Parks, and Planning and Zoning.  This proposal also creates a Sanitation 
Department with a Director that oversees that new Department and creates a Third Ward Revitalization position. 

The proposed changes to this ordinance seek to reclassify positions and add one position, 
mainly in an effort to restructure the administration with less Department heads reporting 
directly to the City Manager, and more focus and oversight on certain tasks and 
responsibilities

n/a

Bill No 9563

Employees

City Manager, Gregory Rose December 9, 2024

N - 1 - 1



INTRODUCED BY:  DATE:     December 9, 2024 

BILL NO.  9563 ORDINANCE NO: 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO 
CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN 
FROM AND AFTER JANUARY 13, 2025, AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO. 7360. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  From and after January 13, 2025, City employees within the classified 
service of the City, hereinafter designated, shall receive as compensation for their services 
such amounts as may be fixed by the City Manager in accordance with Schedule A (Base 
Pay), included herein, with a salary not less than the lowest amount and not greater than 
the highest amount set forth in Schedule A, and shall additionally receive as compensation 
for their services such benefits generally provided in the Administrative Regulations and 
Civil Service Rules now in effect, all of which are hereby adopted, approved, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

N - 1 - 2



 

N - 1 - 3



 

 

 

N - 1 - 4



 

 

N - 1 - 5



N - 1 - 6



 
 

N - 1 - 7



 
 

 
 
 
 
 Section 2. From and after January 13, 2025, seasonal and regular part-time 
employees of the City may be employed at an hourly rate in accordance with the following 
Schedules B1 and B2 (hourly pay rates for regular part-time employees and seasonal 
employees, respectively).

N - 1 - 8



 

N - 1 - 9



 

 

N - 1 - 10



 

 
 

N - 1 - 11



 

 
 
Section 3. From and after on January 13, 2025, City employees in the unclassified service of the City, except as otherwise 

noted, shall receive as compensation for their services the amounts hereinafter set forth, or where a grade in salary is specified, 
such amounts as may be fixed by the City Manager within the specified grade in accordance with the following Schedule C (base 
pay rates for unclassified full-time, part-time, temporary or grant-funded employees) and shall additionally receive as compensation 
for their services such benefits generally provided in the Administrative Regulations now in effect, all of which are hereby adopted, 
approved, and incorporated herein by this reference.     

N - 1 - 12



 
 

 
 
 

 

N - 1 - 13



 

N - 1 - 14



Section 4. From and after January 13, 2025, all full-time non-executive, non-administrative 
or non-professional employees shall be subject to the work week or work cycle and 
regulations relating to overtime work, except as noted.  A listing of executive, administrative, 
and professionally designated employees or positions shall be issued by the City Manager. 

 
1. Department directors shall not be paid overtime nor receive compensatory time for hours 

worked in excess of 40 per week. 
 

2. Department directors may grant compensatory time on a straight time basis to their 
designated executive, administrative, or professional employees for hours worked in excess 
of 40 hours per week.  Such employees are exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. 
 

3. The normal work week for full-time office, field, maintenance, and non-commissioned police 
personnel, and for police and fire executive and administrative employees, is set at 40 hours 
per week.  

 
4. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, when authorized in advance by department 

directors, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, department directors 
in their discretion may grant compensatory time off also at the rate of time and one-half up to 
an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor Standards Act provisions.  

 
5. Hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day period by commissioned police personnel 

who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when 
authorized in advance by the Police Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in 
lieu thereof, in the Police Chief’s discretion, the Police Chief may grant compensatory time off 
also at the rate of time and one-half up to an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor 
Standards Act provisions. 

 
6. Hours worked in excess of 212 hours in a 28-day period by uniformed fire personnel who are 

not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in 
advance by the Fire Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, in 
the Fire Chief’s discretion, the Fire Chief may grant compensatory time off also at the rate of 
time and one-half up to an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. 

 
7. The average work week of Battalion Chiefs shall be 56 hours. They shall not be compensated 

for any hours in excess of 56 hours. 
 
Section 5.  
 

A. From and after January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades 
shown, shall receive compensation for five years consecutive City service, with the exception 
of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from the 
sixth (6th) year through the seventh (7th) year: 
 

In Pay Grade     Monthly Amount 
      P-3  Police Sergeant  $63 
      P-4  Police Lieutenant    67 
      P-5  Police Captain      71  

 

N - 1 - 15



B. From and after January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades 
shown, shall receive compensation for seven years consecutive City service, with the 
exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, 
from and after the eighth (8th) year through the tenth (10th) year: 

 
In Pay Grade     Monthly Amount 
      P-2   Police Officer   $49 
      P-3  Police Sergeant  123 
      P-4  Police Lieutenant  132 
      P-4  Police Captain  142 

 
C. From and after on January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade 

shown, shall receive compensation for ten years consecutive City service, with the exception 
of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from and 
after the eleventh (11th) year through the fourteenth (14th) year: 

 
   In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
   P-2  Police Officer   $80 
 
 

D. From and after on January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade 
shown, shall receive compensation for fourteen years consecutive City service, with the 
exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, 
from and after the fifteenth (15th) year: 

       
In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
      P-2  Police Officer            $92 

 
E. From and after January 13, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in 

the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for seven (7) years consecutive City 
service, excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following 
amounts, from the eighth (8th) year through the tenth (10th) year: 
 

In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
         F-1  Paramedic Firefighters $77 
         F-2  Paramedic Fire Captains   86 
 

F.  From and after on January 13, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in 
the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for ten (10) years consecutive City service, 
excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, 
from the eleventh (11th) year through the twentieth (20th) year: 

 
 In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 

          F-1  Paramedic Firefighters $133 
          F-2  Paramedic Fire Captains   133 

 
 
 

 

N - 1 - 16



G. From and after on January 13, 2025, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in
the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for twenty (20) years consecutive City
service, excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following
amount, from the twenty-first (21st) year:

In Pay Grade   Monthly Amount 
F-1 Paramedic Firefighters $168 
F-2 Paramedic Fire Captains   168 

For the purpose of calculating consecutive service in this section, time served in the 
classifications of Firefighter and Paramedic Firefighter is combined for the same person.  

Section 6. From and after January 13, 2025, all full-time employees shall have their 
hourly rate computed as follows: 

1. The hourly rate for all full-time employees, who, according to Section 4, have a set or
average work week of 40 hours, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying
the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,080.

2 The hourly rate for full-time Paramedic Firefighters, Paramedic Fire Captains and
Battalion Chiefs of the Fire Department, shall have their hourly rate computed by
multiplying the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,912.

Section 7. Ordinance No. 7360 and all ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed. 
Ordinance No. 7040 shall remain in effect in full force and unchanged.  

Section 8. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from its passage as provided 
by law. 

PASSED and ADOPTED this ______ day of_________, 2025. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

N - 1 - 17



N - 1 - 18


	E2 - 2024-11-25 Draft Reg Minutes.pdf
	Blank Page

	K1 - All - Legislative Platform Cover.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	K2 - All  FMA Award.pdf
	COPY
	2. U City FMA Award Packet.pdf
	FY22 FMA U City Grant Agrmt.pdf
	(A) The following documentation is required for matching cash contributions:
	(B) The following documentation is required for matching noncash contributions:


	3. Map of Addresses.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	K3 - All - HMGP.pdf
	COPY
	2. Award Packet to U CIty.pdf
	Award Packet to U CIty.pdf
	Grant Agrmt No MC.pdf
	Funding Appr Form.pdf


	3. Map of Addresses.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Blank Page

	K4 All - Tree removal contract Pershing and Ferguson.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	L1 - City Mgr General Updates - Cover.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	L2 -  All - 1st Qtr FY25 Report.pdf
	COPY
	1st Qtr September 30, 2024 FY2025.pdf
	������������������1st Quarter September 30, 2024� �FY2025 Presentation�
	�General Fund - Revenues
	General Fund – Revenues Percentage as of YTD Actuals
	General Fund - Expenditures
	General Fund – Expenditures Percentage as of YTD Actuals
	Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - Revenues
	Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Revenues
	Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Revenues
	Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Public Safety Sales Tax - Revenues
	Public Safety Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Fire Protection Service Sales Tax - Revenues
	Fire Protection Service Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Slide Number 16

	Qrtly Report -1st Qtr FY25 - Statement of Rev & Exp.pdf
	1st Quarter
	1st Qtr Pension Fds
	1st Qtr Olive I-170 Fds


	E1 - 2024-11-25 Draft Study Minutes - Third Ward Housing and Revitalization Report.pdf
	Blank Page

	N1 - All _CompOrd_Dec2024_2.pdf
	Bill 9563 - Compensation Ordinance and Pay and Classification Plan_Dec2024_2.pdf
	1. Department directors shall not be paid overtime nor receive compensatory time for hours worked in excess of 40 per week.
	2. Department directors may grant compensatory time on a straight time basis to their designated executive, administrative, or professional employees for hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week.  Such employees are exempt from Fair Labor Standards...
	3. The normal work week for full-time office, field, maintenance, and non-commissioned police personnel, and for police and fire executive and administrative employees, is set at 40 hours per week.
	4. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, when authorized in advance by department directors, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, department directors in their discretion may grant compensatory time off also at the r...
	5. Hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day period by commissioned police personnel who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in advance by the Police Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and o...
	6. Hours worked in excess of 212 hours in a 28-day period by uniformed fire personnel who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in advance by the Fire Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half...
	7. The average work week of Battalion Chiefs shall be 56 hours. They shall not be compensated for any hours in excess of 56 hours.
	B. From and after January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for seven years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in th...
	C. From and after on January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown, shall receive compensation for ten years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in th...
	D. From and after on January 13, 2025, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown, shall receive compensation for fourteen years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification ...

	1. The hourly rate for all full-time employees, who, according to Section 4, have a set or average work week of 40 hours, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,080.

	Blank Page
	N1 - Updated Cover Form_CompOrd_Dec2024_2.pdf
	COPY


	K5 - All ARPA Grant AGENDA ITEM R.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	K6 - All - Disposal Service Agreement.pdf
	K6 - Cover-Disposal Service Agreement.pdf
	COPY





